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Board of Directors
North Marin Water District

Introduction

It is our pleasure to submit the Annual Financial Report for the North Marin Water District for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, following guidelines set forth by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. District staff prepared this financial report. The District is ultimately responsible for
both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and the fairness of presentation, including all
disclosures in this fînancial report. We believe that the data presented is accurate in all material respects.

This report is designed in a manner that we believe necessary to enhance your understanding of the

Di strict's financial position and activities.

This report is organized into two sections: (1) Introductory and (2) Financial. The Introductory section

offers general information about the District's organization and current District activities and reports on a

summary of significant financial results. The Financial section includes the Independent Auditors' Report,

Management's Discussion and Analysis of the District's basic financial statements, and the District's
audited basic financial statements with accompanying Notes and Supplemental Information.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) require that management provide a narrative

introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the financial statements in the form of the

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A a¡rd should be read in conjunction with it. The District's MD&A can be found

immediately after the Independent Auditors' Report.

District Structure and Leadership

The North Marin Water District is an independent special dishict, which operates under the authority of
Division 12 of the California Water Code. The North Marin Water District has been providing water
service to its customers since 1948. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors, elected

at-large from within the District's service area. The General Manager administers the day-to-day

operations of the District in accordance with policies and procedures established by the Board of
Directors. The North Marin Water District employs 64 employees, some of which are parJ-time or
temporary. There are curently 32 office positions and 32 field positions and no vacant positions. The

District's Board of Directors meets on the first and third Tuesdays of each month. Meetings are publicly
noticed and citizens are encouraged to attend.

The District provides water service to approximately 61,000 residents in the greater Novato area through
20,382 service connections. The District also provides water service to approximately 1,800 residents in
the Point Reyes service area of West Marin County through 760 service connections and sewer service to
approximately 500 residents in the Oceana Marin service area of West Marin County through 224 service

connections
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District Services

The District provides water service to the greater Novato area and to areas of West Marin (Point Reyes
Station, Oletna, Beal Valley, Inverness Park and Paradise Ranch Estates). The District pl'ovides sewer
services to the area of Oceana Marin.

Residential custolners zrre approxirnately 93o/r, of the District's ct"lstonler base and consume approximately
79c/o of the water ploduced annually by the District. The District purchases approximately 80% of its
water supply from the Sonorna County Water Agency (Agency) with the balance delived from the
Disti'ict's ,Stâffürd Lake Reservoir. l¡l fiscal year 2008 and 200?, the t)isirict purchased approxirnately 2.8
and 3.3 billion gallons of water fì'om the Age.ncy, respectively,

Economic Condition, Outlook antl Major Initiatives

The Distl'ict can'ies out its Mission with a highly-motivated and corllpetelìt stafT ernltowered to conduct
the District's lrusiness by placing custünlsr rleeds and wellare first. Each day, District em¡rloyees sti:ive to
caffy out their work lnindful of these basic princi¡rles: Good Water, Good Service, Good Value, and A
Safe Piace to Work.

T'he Russian River water delivery system frorn ille Agency typically provides B07o of the District's water
supply, lrul continues to have lirnited capacity in sumrner months. Rainfall in fisc¿rl year 2O07 totaled only
15.25" ancl dry spring conditions resulted in the State Watet lìesources Control Board ordering reduced
diversiolts fì'om the ììussian River during surÌuner months of 2007. In response, the District decl¿red a
water shortage emergency and adopted an ordinance plohibiting the waste of water. The District's new
Staffold Líìke water treatrnent plant was firlly utilized to ofl.set Russian lìivel supplies with local water
supply and the Deer lslaiid recycled water treatrnent f'acility (a joini project between the Disirict and
Novato Sanitary District) was cotnpleted, to deliver highly-treatecl recycled rvastewÍìter to irrigate Stone
Tree GoJf Course.

A tlew Restructurcd Agreetnent with the Agency for increased Russian River water has been executed,
but necessary Russian River water production and delivery facilities (pumps and pipelines) have not yet
been constl'ucted to fulfill the contract requirements. Cornpeting environmental and fìshel:y-related
interests are delaying the Russian River water làcility development and the District looks forwarcl to
achieving lnore water conservation and development of recycled water 1o further stretch its local sollrce
of supply in future years,

Dl'y weather patterns continue and the spring of 2008 was the driest on record with only 0.39 inches of
rainfall from March through June. The l)istrict's w¿ìter corìservation efforts continue to be locused on
leducing sumlnel' water demand, which primarily involves outdoor irrigation. Additional customer
outrcach was made in the spring of 2008 f'or conservation. Water use restrictions fbr new development
were rnade mole stringent. The WaterLine newsletter was again published in the spring and fall. The
spring edition included tips on how to reduce summer water demand and described the Distl'ict's curretlt
watel'coltservation programs. T'he District's Water Conservatìon Plan was updated and shows that over
1,000 acre-fèet of watel' is being saved each year.

In West M¿u'in, normal year water su¡lply conditions on Lzrgunitas Creek prevailed and customers
experiencecl no water restl'ictions. Work on long-r'ange improvements continued and the Invelness Park
Pump Station upgrade was colnpleted.

At $382 per year, the cost of water service for a typical Novato singìe farnily home using 130,000 gallons
of water a year is the second-lowest of urban alea water purveyors. Water remains a good value for
Novato custorners.
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District Water Supply

Stafford Lake - Local Source Provides 20Vo of the District's Supply

Stafford Lake lies four lniles west of downtown Novato and collects the runoff fì:oln 8.3 squâre miles of
watershed land adjacetrt to lhe u¡:¡rer reaches of Novato Cleek. The lake has a surface alea of 230 acres

and holds 4,450 AF (acre-feet) (1,450 MG) of water. Water froln Stafford Lake is fed into the 6 nrillion
gallons per day (mgd) treatment plant located just below the danr. ln fiscal year 2008 and 200'7 ,2,1 86 AF
(712 MG) at'td 1,072 AF (349 MG), respectively, of water was ¡rt'oduced fiom the new Stafford Lake

Water Treatment Plant.

Russíøtt, River - Providcs 80Vo qf the Di,strict's Attttual Supply

I{ussian River water originates fì'oln both the Eel River and the Russian River watersheds northeast of the

City of Ukiah (Lake Mendocino) and west of Healdsbulg (Lake Sonoma). The Coyote Dam and L¿rke

Mendocillo impounds the Eel River diversions and winter runoff from the local watershed. Warm Springs

Dam and Lake Sono¡tra impound winter runoff from the Dr:y Creek and Warm Spl'ings local watersheds.

Lakes Mendocino ¿rnd Sonoma combined can store 367,.500 acre feet to meet the regions' water supply

needs. Releases fi'om the lakes flow to a point ¿rbout 10 miles upstrcâln of Guel'neville where six dee¡r

Ranney Collector wells collect river water that has been filtered through 60 to 90 feet of natur¿rl sand and

gravel to perforated pipes located at the bottonr of each well. The thick layer of sand and gravel through

which the w¿rter rnust pass before reaching the intake pipes provides a highly-efficient, n¿rtural f iltratioll
process whicl-r, with chlolination treatlnent, produces a cleal', potable, bacteria-fiee water. This water is

then fed directly into the Agency's aqueduct systern.

In fiscal year 2008 and 2007, the District rcceived 8,477 AF (2,762 MG) and 10,133 AF- (3,302 MG),

respectively, of Russian River water. The District has an agreement in place with the Agency to provide

sulficient supply and meet the Distl'ict's cnrrent and fiture water supply needs. Thele conti¡rues to be

competing intelests for Russian River water', principally to protect steelhead and salmon listed as

threatened species under the Endangered Species Act. There is still much work to do in Sonoma County

to build rìecessary pumps and pipelines to import the future deliveries. The District continues to actively

support the necessary development of the Russian River water supply and protection of the Russian River

fìsheries.

Internal Control Structure

District management is responsible for the establishment and maintenallce of the intental control structure

that ensures the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or lnisuse. The intemal control

structure ¿rlso ensures that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the pl'eparation of financial

statements in confornrity with gener:ally accepted accounting principles. The District's intemal control
structure is designed to ¡rrovide reasonable assurance that these objectives ale met. The conce¡rt of
reasonable assurauce recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be

derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefìts requires estitnates and judgments by maÍìagemelìt.

Budgetary Control

The District Board ol'Directors annually adopts an operating and czrpital budget prior to the new fiscal

year. The budget authorizes and provides the basis lbr reporting and control of financial oper:ations and

accountability for the District's enterprise operations and capital proiects. The budget and r:eporting

treatn-rent applied to the District is consistent with the accrual basis of accounting and the financial

statement basis.
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Investment Folicy

The Board of Directors has adopted an investment policy that confbrms to state law, Distlict ordinance
and resolutions, prudent Ínoney rTranagelnent, and the "pludent persou" stalldards. Tlre ob.jective of the
Investment Policy is sal'ety, rnatulity and yieìd. District lunds are invested in the State Tl'easurer's Local
Agency Investment Fund and the District has purchased U.S. Treasuries, I.-ederal agency securities and
corpot'ate mediutn-tenll notes thlough its custodial trnstee Uniou Bank of Calilbrnia.

Water Rates and District Revenucs

I{evenue lionr user charges generated fì'onr l)istrict custorrers srìppoft District o¡rerations. Accorclingly,
water and sewer r"tes are reviewed periodically. Water and sewer rates ale user charges imposed on
custonlers for services and are the primaly courponeut of the District's revenue. Water rafes are
com¡rosed o1'a colntnodity (usage) charge and a fìxecl bi-rnonthly service charge; whereas, sewer rates äle
con¡rosecl ¡rrilriarily of a fixed (rnonthly) charge.

Audit and F'inancial Reporting

State Law artd Bond coveuarìts rcquire the District to obtain an annual audit of its financial stafements by
an independent Certified Public Accountant. The accounting firm of Charles Z. Fedak & Company,
CPAs has conducted the audit ol' the District's financial statements. 'llheir unqualified Independent
Auditor's Reporl appears in the F,ìnancial Section.

Risk Managenrcnt

The District is selÍ'-insured I'or genelal liability claims up to the first $1.0 rnillion and has established a
contingent liability account to set aside resources for such purposes. The District purchases commercial
iusurallce coverage for property and equipment, fidelity bonds, automobile liability, and general liability
in excess of its self-insurance limit. Ilrcurred and unpaid claiurs, if any, are accrued as a liability when it is
probable that an asset has been irnpaired and the amount of the obligati<xt cau be leasonably estirnated.

Technological Advance in Customer Service

The Distl'ict nlade significant changes to its customer service divisiorr, which has irnproved customer
convenience. Customers now have the option to receive and pay their water and sewer bills in a variety
of options including e-billing a¡rd online bill paynient.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors
North Marin Water District
Novato, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the North Marin Water District (District) as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the

table of contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit. The comparative
financial information as of June 30,2007 was audited by other auditors whose report dated November 1,2,2007,
expressed an unqualified opinion on those basic financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Cornptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the North Marin Water District as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in
net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Awliting Standards, we have also issued a report dated September 11, 2008, on

our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be

read in conjunction with this repoft in considering the results of our audit. This reporl can be found on page 43.

Management's discussion and analysis on pages 6 through 10 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted primarily of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the supplemental information. However, we did not audit this
information and express no opinion on it. Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the

financial statements that collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying
Cornbining Statements in the supplemental information section on pages 39 to 42 are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary information has

been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion,
is stated fairly in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying introductory section on pages I through 4 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and

is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The introductory section has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

September 11, 2008
Cypress, California
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North Marin Water District
Managetnent's Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

The following Managernent's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial petformance

of the North Marin Water District (District) provides an introduction to the financial statements of the

District for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007. We encourage readers to consider the

infbrmation presented here in conjunction with the transmiltal letter in the lntloductory Section arld with

the basic financial stateltlents and related notes, which fbllow this sectioll.

Financial Highligltts

o The District's net assets increased 6.47o ol$4,855,829 to $80,319,790 in fiscal year 2008. In

2007, tl.te District's net assets increased 5.Bo/o or $4,419,169 to $75,463,961. (Prior period

adjusttnents were factored into these calculations).

o In 2008, the District's o¡rerating revellues clecle¿rsecl 0.6ck ot'$68,880 due to ttTc/a decline ttt

water salçs volume ofTset by a higher rate for non-residential custonrers. In 2007, the District's

operating l'evetìues increasecl 15.2o/o or $ I ,5-59,21 3 due to an 87o increase in water sales volulne

coupled with a'7o/o rate increase.

o The Distl'ict's operating expenses before depleciation decreased 0.17o or $16,996 due to lower

water procul'errelìt cost offiet by increases in w¿rter tleatment costs during tlre fiscal year. ln

2007,iheDistrict'soperatingexpensesbefbredepreciationincreased ll.ZVaor$1,269,278dueto
a $688,700 increase in ex¡rensed im¡rrovement project costs and a ï,202,916 inclease in general

and administmtive expenses.

Required Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial statelnents. The Staternent of Net Assets, Statement of
Revenues, Expenses ancl Changes in Net Assets and Statement of Cash Flows provide information about

the activities and ¡rerfol'mance of the District using accounting rnethods sirnilar to those used by private

sector companies.

The Staternent of Net Assets includes all of the District's investmeltts in l'esources (assets) and the

obligations to creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating

the ð;rpital structure of the Distlict and assessing the liquidity and financial f.'lexibility of the District. All
of the current year's revenue and expenses ale accounted for in tlte Statement of Revettues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Assets. This statement measufes the success o1'the District's olrerations ovet the past

year ind ca¡ be used to cletennine if the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its

rates and other charges. This statetnent can also be used to evaluate profitability and credit worthiness.
'Ihe final required financial statemeÍìt is the Staternent of Cash Flows, which provides infot'mation about

the District's cash receipts and cash payments during the tepofting period. The Staternent of Cash Flows

reports cash receipts, cash paytìtents and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, non-

capital fìnancing, and capital and related fìnancing activities and plovides answers to such questions as

where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balatlce duling the

reporting period.

Financial Analysis of the District

One of the nrost important questions askecl about the District's finances is, "Is the District bettel'off ol'

worse off as a result of this year's activities?" "I'he Staternent of Net Assets and the Statement of
Reve¡ues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets repoft information about the District in a way that helps

answer. this question. These statenìents include all assets and liabilities using tlte acr:nd ba,sis oJ

acc:6unti1.g, which is similar to the accounting used by most private sectol'conrpanies. AII of the current

year's l'evenues and expenses ¿rre taken into account legardless of when the cash is received or: paicl.
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North Marin Water District
M an,ageme nt's Di sc uss i on an d Anøly sis

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

These two statements l:e¡roIt the Drstrict''s n,et essets and changes in them. You can tliink of the District's
net assets - the diffelence betweetì assets and Iiabilities - as one way to rreasrlre the District's financial
health, or finan.cial ¡tositiort.. Over fime, in.cre¿tses c¡r tlecrect,çe,r in the District's nel assets al'e one
indicator of whether ìts.fincutcial lrcal.th is improving or deteriorating. However', one will need to consider
othel'non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth, new or changed
govcrulÌ'ìenl lesislatioll or llecoultting slancl:rrtls- as we!! as charrges ill Federal ancl State water qu:ì!ity
standalds.

Notes to the BasÍc Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information th¿rt is essential to a full undcrstallding of the data providecl in
tlie basic financial statements. Tlre notes to the basic fìnancial statements can be found on pages 1.5

through 38.

Statement of Net Assets

Condensed Sf ate¡ncltts of Net Assets

200rì 21107 Change 2006 Changc

Assel.s:

Cúrrcnl assets

Nor)-curfcnt asscts

CÍrpitÍrl tssels, nct

'Iotal assets

Liabi li tics:
Curcnt liabiliticrs

Non-cL¡ncnt liabi lifies

Total liabilities

Net âssels:

Nel invrìs{lnent in ca¡rilal asscts

lìcstr-icted lbI ca1rital plojtrcts and clebt scl'vice
U nl c stric tcd

Ir¡tal nct assets

Total lial¡ilities â¡rd ¡ìet assets

23,890,4ó8 24,383.902 93,434) 2t,n2,633

$ t0,'71e,67'1
8,077,090

I5,4t3.49I

104,2 r0,2.58

8,-55 I,863
I I.91 8,9í)
7L).371.040

99,847.tì63

2,167.l| 4
(3,8.+1,870)

6,036,4-5 r

4,362.395

(s76,33 r)
82,89 7

6,407,tì2.s

12.566,240

73,453,3 m
92,427.42s

2, l 44,038
(62t7,2tì0)

5,923,6fì0

7,420,438

3,412,086
20,478,382

3,98 8,417

20,39.5,48.5

5 ,003.7 5.5

I 6,108,tì 78

( l .0 r .s .338)

4,286,607

3,21 I ,269(4

| ,945,802
( 2,509.896)
4,7 13,261

rJ0,3 r9.790 '75,463,96t 4.1ì.55,829 7t,314,792 4,149,t69

$ r04.210.2s8 99.847.863 .1..ì(12,395 92.4)'/,425 7.420 ,4 3iì

As noted earliel, net assets tnay serve over tinre as a useful indicator of'a govel'nrrent's financial position.
In fhe case of the District, assets of the l)istrict exceedecl liabilities by $80,319,790 and $75,463,961 as of
June 30, 2008 ancl2007, r'espectively.

By far tlre largest lroflion of the District's net assets (\lc/o and 79o/o as of June 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively) reflects the District's investment in capital assets (net ol'accumulated depreciation) less any
related debt used fo acquire those assets that is still outsfanding. The District uses these capital assets to
pt'ovide services to custolïìel's within lhe District's service area; consequently, these ¿rssets ate n.ot
available for futule spending,

At the end of fiscal year' 2008 and 2007, the District showed a positive balance in its unrestrictecl net
assets ol' fi10,476,733 and fìl 1,179,233, r'espectively, which may be utilized in future years.

6 5,099,863

4.713.194
10,416,'733

59,290,284
1,994,444

I t.179.233

-5,809,57 9

(2.5 I ,2s 0)
(702,s00)

57,344,482
7 .504,140
(t.465,970
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North Marin Water District
Møn,agcment's Discussion and Ana.lysß

F'or the Years Endcd June 30,2008 and 2007

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Condensed Stateurenl.s of Rcvenues, Iìxpenses and Changes ill Net A.ssets

200rì 21t07 Change 2006 Change

Iìcv cnue:

Opelnting rcvenue

Non-operaling revcnuc

Total revcnuc

Expensc:
0pcrating expense
Deplecialion and amortizal ion

Non-o¡relating experìsc

'lbtal expense

Net income before capital contributions

Capital contlibutions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of y car

Prior period adjustrnents

Net. âssets, end ofyear

12,699,07'1 13,{r1.5,954 (9 r 6.87 7) r0,905,909

$ 11.'779,t57
919,92(\

I 1,84t3,037

|.767 917

(6ir,880)
(847,997)

l 0,288,8 24

6 ¡7.0ris
1,s59,2t3
I ,1.50,lì32

7 t0.0451

i 2.53tì,993

| ,7 61 ,673

722,709

i 2,55 5,989
I,490,07?

58S, I 78

( 16,99 6)

271 ,596
I 33,53 l

\t .286,'t t I
j ,069, r 49

3tì6,7 59

t,26e ,278
420,928

202.41()

t 5,023,31s 14,635,244 3u8,t3t 12,742,611) 1 ,892,625

(2324,298)

7,061 ,89 r

(1,019,2q0)

rì,63 9,03 r

(1,30.5,008)

l ,s 77. I 4o)

(1,836,7 l0)

2,133,298

8r1 ,120

6,505,733

4,737.593

't 5,163,961

I l8,236

I ,6t 9;t 4t

7t,314,-192

(3,410,s12)

(2,882,r48)

4,149,r69

3,.5 88,808

296.5 88

7 t ,0t8,204

(3, r 78,73O

296,588

3..5rì8,808

70ó.660$ 80,319,790 7.5,463,961 4.tì55,829 '11,314;792

The statemeut ol'revenues, expenses and changes of net assets shows how the District's net assets

clranged during the fiscal years. In the case of the District, net assets increased by $4,8.5-5,829 and

$4,149,169 for the fiscal yeal's ended June 30,2008 and 2007, respectively, taking into consider¿ìtion the
pr'ìor period adjustments in both years.

A closer examination of the sources of changes iü net assets leveals that:

In 2008, the District's total revenue decreased by $916,877, primarily due to a decrease in non-operatitrg

revenue of $847,997 arising primarily fl'om the receipt of the f$627,395 construction lawsuit settlement in
2007. Total expense increased $388,131, due prirnarily to an increase in depleciation and interest

expense,

ln 2007, the District's total reveRre increasecl by $2,710,045, prirnarily due to an increase in water

consumptioll and w¿ìter rates and the non-oper¿ìting revenue of $627,395 Íì'orn the construction lawsuit
settlen.ìent. Total expense increased $1,892,625, due prirnarily to an increase in expensed impl:ovement
project costs, an inclease in general and administr¿rtive expenses and depreciation expense.

8



North Marin \{ater District
Man ag e m e tú's l)is c tts s i o n an.d A na.ly sis

For the Years Ended Juno 30,2008 and 2007

Total DistrÍct Revenues

Opcrtl ing rn'crrues:
Wate r r:onsumplion salc's

Moulhly nple r sc¡ victr chrrge
Se*,er serv icc chargcs

Wale r conserv¡rkrn pr(iùils
Othcr clìiìrge.s and sclvices

Tol ål 0l)ol'â{¡r¡g lcvúrrues

Non-o¡rentting rcvenrre :

Prol)cil), Ltx rc vctì ltc

Invcslrnent earnilgs
Renlal rcvcnr¡c

Clorìstillc tioil lîwsuil scllllxìlet)t
(irrin Ùrr sîlc/disposition ol urpìltrì ¿\srls
()fhcr n<ln-o¡rerirting rc vcn ues

'lbf iìl Do n- op(r'itting rovelrucs

'lìrtn I rcve¡ruc.s

____2q!8 _ 2!07 _SL¡re" - 2006 Ch¿¡nso .-

$ 9.607,490

t.424,ó28

146,612

394,39ri
flìs o00

trrrr-

9.1¡93.104

t,4l 2,,12tì

t 4 5,fi)5
40(t,811

I 90,087

ll.848,037

tl.¿[32,2 l0
r ,338.5:ì3

14t.739
t!r8.9 7ô

)77.366

r.2(il,tì94
73,1195

3,866
'2ú'i. 3'i

(8s,ór 4)

I 2.200

|,031
( 12,¿l I 5)

r 5,912 771t2

t(r8,f180) 10.288.1Ì2.+ 1.559,2i 3

22.867

* 38.5f14

919.92{,)

9't.919
825.79_q

48.161

627,395
20,509

148,134

l,'t61.9t.-7

r3,6 r s,95.r

't2.210

(126,697)

t.012
(ó 27,:19 5)

2,358
(r 09.550),

r)ìd? 0ulr

,t 
"r"t)

82, I 38

'1s0,7 99
47 ;1 36

36,.+ l2

6l?.085

___ry82!9_

t 5,78 I

375,000
425

(i27,395

20_501)

I It ."t22

I t<¡l Ql,

ï/--*t

I 10.r29
699.1.07

49.233

$ 12,(199,077

ïn 2008, as noted previously, total L)istrict operating revenüe held steady in 2008 fl'om 2007; however,
non-operating revenue declined due to a reduction in mark-to-rnarket gairls on the l)istrict's portfolio and
the District receiving $627,395 for the construction lawsuit settlement in 2007 .

ln 2007, the District's total revenues increased by $2,710,045, primarily due to ar'ì inclease in water
consumptiolr anct water rates and the non-operating reve¡ìue of $627,39-5 fi'orn the construction lawsuit
settlement.

Total District Expenses

20(ltt ?907 Changc 21106 ChanrÌe

()¡rcriti ing cxpcnstrs:
Sorrcc of sup¡rly

Punr¡tirrg

Watcr lhci litics oper¿tiors
W¿ìlÈt lrrallileDt
'l'r'ansnrission arrd dislribution
Scwagc collectiur ¡nd h L'rì1n)etìt

Custonrcr scrvicc
(lclcral and adnrinistrativc
IJìrpr0von)!lnt proiæls
'Walcr c0rservâtion projæts
Ovcrhcrrd al)s(xption

Dcprcr:iatio n and arnortizil jo n

'l'otal operrthrg cxpcnses

Nou<r¡rcmting cx¡renscs:
lr)lerçìsl cxpcnsc - k)nÈ-tcflD debt

Sorrorna County Watcr Agcncy agr!"+n1.'nt

l-oss o n slle/tlis¡rosili on o1' cill)i liì I Íì s\ots

0lher nol-operati rìg cxlcrsrrs

Tol ll non-o¡rcratirg cx¡renr^ts

'l'Ofalrxpcns($

4t I,513 3s7,937 53.60ó

t't],615

ln 2008, âs noted previously, total District operating expenses increased due to a decrease in watel
procurement (source of supply) costs which were offset by increases ill water tleatnlent, transmíssion and
distlibution, and de¡rreciation expenses. Also, interest expense inclcased as well.

I'n 2tt7, as lìoted previously, totai District expenses increased 51,892,625, due prirnalily to an incrcase in
expensed improvement projecl costs, au increase in general and administrative expenses and an increase
in depreciation expense"

t' 1,782,414

379,34r
.s06,287

r,698,7fi1

2,38-\,712

84,418

4ft.301
1,900.16q

| ,'175,193

3.59.748
(499.4{r I .¡

t.761 .613

$ r 4,300,ó66

4,5 t 3,365

38 r,725

5l ft,996

t,303,08:l
2,222,348

7 8.r28
4't4,0f12

I ,8ll5.6(17
1,533,47"1

283.242
(s88.:ì2'l )

. t.490,071

14.0.+6,066

(730.95 l)
(2.3 84)

( I 2,709)
3 95,ó9I
163.3\)4

ó,090

(7.78 t)
64.5Q2

(sfi,28 4)
76.506

88,923

271.596

2 s4,ó00

4,508,46?
358,8 44

5Cr4,49 ¡

r.205,.525

2,059,031
88,99tt

4-\0,218
l .632.7 5 I

ti44,7 77
278.6 6u

(64s. I I '1)
r .0ó9. I 49

i 2,355,860

4,903

2?_.8ti I

14..505

97..558

t63 ,3 t7
( t0.670)
23,804

202,916

688.700
4.571

56,790
420,9?8,

1.690.20ó

5 i 9,41ì4

1t4,682
87,214

I,329

122.709

$ l 5,023,37.5

, 5lì9.t78

14,(r3 5.24,1

10't ,94)
i14,6tì2
(90,42 I )

1329

_-iff.L
3tìrì,r3 r

?8.8 22

3ti6.7 59

17.74?.619

t77.6?5
/ta !1ar

,rL-*
r.892,62s
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North Marin Water District
trI anøgeme nt's Discussion and Anølysis

For the Years Bnded June 30,2008 and 2007

Capital Asset Administration

At the end of fìscal year 2008 and 2007, the District's investment in capital assets arnounted to

$85,413,491 and 579,371,040, respectively, @et of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital

assets illcludes: land, transmission and distributiou systelns, teservoirs, tanks, pumps, buildings and

stl'uctures, equipment, vehicles and construction-in-progress, etc. (See Note 8 for fumher infonration)

Changes in capital asse{ ¿u¡ounts lbt 2008 wele as lbllows:
Ilalance Transf'ers/ lìalance

21107 Additions Deletions 2008

Capitù[ assets:

Non<lc¡rleci ablo asscts

I)cpreciitble assets

Acc:u mulatetl dcplcc i rrtion ancl amor'ti zati on

Tbtal ca¡rittl asscls, ne[

t2.8'71,t25
86,540,765

0)

li 79,377.040

Changos in capital assct arnounts l'oL 2007 wcrc ¿ìs follows:
lìalance

2006

$ 2,e84,826
12,t42,t51
(,761,6'73)

13,365,304

(7.242,519)
(148,444)

62,1 l 0

8,6r 3.41ì2

98,534,472

l2t,734,413\

(7,328,rìs3) 8s,413,49r

Capital assets:

Non-de¡lec:iable assets

Depleciablc assets

Accumulated depreciation ¿tncl antoltization

Total ca¡rital assets, nel

Long-telm dcbt:

Bonds payablc

l,oiuts payable

'l'otal long-telm dcbt

L,ong-fernr debt;

Bonds ¡rayithlc
Loans payable

Total long-tcrm debt

ï 24,750,546
63,896,374

( I 8,ó64, r 31 )

$ ó9,982,789

t0,662,527
22,937,849
(1.490,077)

(22.541,94Íl)
(293,4s8)

I 19,3.513

Additions

'l'ransfcrs/

l)eletions
Ilalance

2007

12,871 ,125
86,-540,765

(20,034,8s0)

1? 110.299 (22,716,048) 79,377,040

Debt Administration

Changes in lortg-term debt amounts 1'ol tlrc: yeal'wcre as lìrllovvs
Ralance

20117

s

Additions
Principal
Payments

Ilal¿rnce

200tt

335,80 r

t9.911.82762rì.881

(.27,792)

(374.2t7)
363,593

19,123,1(t3

$ 20,086,756

Changes in lortg-ternr tlcbt amounts lirl'tho ycal wore as lbllows
Iìalance

2006

62tt.8rì I 402,(X)9) 20,3t3,628

$ 396,243

I5,33ti.404 4.578.532

(32,6,50)

(t93,773)

Additions
Princi¡lal
Paynrents

Ilalance
2007

363,593

19.123.163

$ 15,734,641 4.518,532 (226.423) 20,086.7-s6

(See Note l2 for futther debt service inforrnation)

Requests for Information

This financial repolt is designed to plovide the District's funding soul:ces, customers, stakeholders and

other interested parties with an overview of the District's financial operations and financial condition.
Should the reader have cluestions legalding the information included in this report or wish to reqLtest

additional financial information, please contacl the District's Auditor-Controller at 999 Rush Creek Place,

Novato, Calilornia 94945 - (41.5) 897-4133.
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North Marin Water District
Statements of Net Assets
June 30,2008 and 2007

Assets

Cutte¡rl assets:

Cash ancl caslr cquivalents (note 3)

llestticlcd - casli and cash equivalcnts (no{e 3)
Acclucd ì ntcl'esl receivalrlc
Accounts lcccivaltle - watel'ancl sewer salcs alrcl scLviccs

Accounts receír,able - govcullìlclttal agcncìcs

Accounts leceivable - ot.hcr

NotÈ reccriv¿rblc - Illack Point Goll'Links * cut'r'cnl ¡tortion (nole 5)
Notes rcceivable - cnr¡rloyec computcr loans (notc (r)

Matclia]s and supPlies inventoly
Prcpaicl expcnscs ancl dcposits

Tol.al currcnt assets

Non-cur-enl asse(s:

Invcsf mcnls (notc 3)

llcstlicfed - invcstntcllts (notc 3)
Intclnal balanccs (notc 4)
Note lcceivablc - Illac:k Point Coll'Links (notc 5)

Notes lcccivablc * employce housing assistance loans (notc 7)
Capital assets. not bcing depr'*:ìatcd (notc tì)
I)e¡rleciable calljtal assets, nct (nofe 8)

Tolal non-cull'cllt asscts

Tntal asst¡ts

Líaltilities and Net Assets

Curlent liabilities:
Accounts paynble nnd accl'ued cxpcnses
Accn¡ed wages ancl relirtcd plyables
Acctr¡ed claims payablc (note 9)

Customcr advanc:cs and deposits

Acclued inle¡'csl payablc - long-tern.r tlcbt
Long-teflÌl liabilities - due wil'hin olìc yeal':

Cou¡rensatecl absences (notc: I 0)
Iìonds payablc (notc I 2)

Ltians payablc (notc l2)

Total culr'erìt liabilit ies

Nou-cullcnt Iiabi lities:
Long-lelm liabiliticrs * c'lue in nrore than onc ycar:

Com¡rcnsated ahscnccs (notc 10)

Post enrploynìont benelits payablc (note I l)
Bonds payable (nott: 12)

Loans payablc (note l2)

Totiìl nou-cun'cnt liabilitics

'l'otal lial¡ilities

Ne[ assets:

Net investmcnt in cnpital asscls (note l3)
Ilcstlictccl for capital pnrjccfs and debt scrvice (note l4)
UnIestÍic:tcd (note 1 5)

I'otal net assels

Total lÍabilitics a¡rd nef asscts

$cçr ¿tcc:onrpanyirìg notcs to thc basic l'inancial statements

11

93,490,58 r 9l .29(r,000

$ 104,210.258 99.rì47,rìó3

$

2008

.5.293,I 1.5

r.063.64ó
t44.5tì6

2,.5.50.ril3

.590.tì6ó

226,514
174,332

8,1 64

6.14.3t5
3-?,476

2007

2,957.603
t.32?,694

143,573
2.3tì2,450

ó89,9.53

r75,740
I70,20ó

4.509
ó-55,1 I I

49,024

10.7 19.677 _. _{,11,!.$Þ1

439,9fi)
3,6tì3,3 1 tì

3.0't4.6t2
879,200

B,(r13,432

76,800,0.59

+,.1y-t,t t.).1

3,ó75, I 63

3.248,944
701 ,200

t2,f\"11.125

66,.505,9 r5

$ 1,842.215

298,147

24,557

9s2,75t
6,731

90,563
)1 Q17,

174,199

1,812.962
284,360
r 1 1,960

t,6()3,281

45,230

109,rì3tì

20.786

3,4 r 2.086 3.988,417

2? r,68tì
90.1 88

312,878

le,tì03,62iì

329,5 r 5

342.807

19,72?.163

20,478,382

23,890,46fÌ

20,395,485

24,383.902

65,099,tì63

4.743,194
10.476;t33

rJ0,319.790 75,463,961

59.290,284
4,994.444

1l,179,233

$ I04,2 r0,258 99.rì47,8óil



North Marin Water District
Statements of Revenues, Ilxpenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the Years Bnded June 30,2008 and 2007

2008 2007

Operaling revenues:

Water cor.¡surn¡rtion sales

Montlrly tneter scrvice chal'ge

Seu'er scrvice charges

Watcl conscrvation ¡rloiccl s

()thcr chargcs ancl scl'viccs

Tofal opelating tgvfltuos

O¡lcral.ing oxperìscs:

Source of'supply
Purnping
Wttct' laci litics opcraliorrs
'Watcr tleatnlcnt
Transnri ssion and distributitln
Sewagc collcclion atìd [rcatment

Custonrel scrvice
Gcnol'al and achninistlative
Irnplovcrnent projccts

Watcr çonscl'vation proiccls

Total opcrating expenscs

Operatin-e loss belble overhcacl absolption
Ovcrhcad absru ption

Opelating loss before de¡rr:eciation and amt¡'tizutiotl
De¡rreciation

Operating loss

Nou-opclaling revcnucs(expcnscs):
Properly tax revenuo

Invcstmenl earnitrgs

Rental lcvcnue

Consf tuction lawstrit seltlcnlenl
Intcrest cxpctlse - long-ternr debt

Sclnoma Cìounty Watcr Agoncy agl'celnctìt (notc 2l)
Loss on sale/dis¡rosition <lf capital assets, net

Other non-operaling lcvcnues, ncl

'Iotal non-operafing revenucs, net

Net loss bef'ore capital contributions

Capìtal contr:ibufions:
Dcvclopers and othel's

Connec(ion l'ess

Capital contributituls

Change in nef assets

Net asscls, beginning o1'yeiu'

Priol per:iod ad.iustrnent (note 2)

Net assets, end o1'ycar

See accornpatryirrg notcs lo the basic lìnancial statgtuenls

(2,521,509\ (2, r9tì.029)

(759,836)
(1,76t,673)

(701,952\
(1,490,077)

1r0,r29
699,101

49,233

91,919
82s,199
48,16r

627,395
(4r,s43)(s r9,484)

( il 4,682)
(64,347)
31,255

197 .211 t,118,739

(2,324,298) (l,0 19,290)

$ 9,607,490
I,424,(¡28

146,642

394,398

205,.999

9,693, r04
t,412,428

l4-5,60-5

406,81 3

190,087

I | :779,157 r 1,848

3,782,414
379,341

506,281

I,698,781
2,385.742

tì4.4 t8
466,30t

I ,900,169
t,475,t93

-159,'t48

4.513,365
38t,725
5l 8,996

I,303,083
2.222,348

78,328
474^082

r,835,667
|,533,477

283,242

t3,038,394 13,144,313

(.1,296,216)

588,324
(t,259,231)

499,401

(157,126\
148,134

5,546,285
I ,.51,5,606

8,210,864
428,t6'7

7.06 | ,891 8.639,03 r

4,131 ,593

15,463,961

I t8,236

$ tì0,319,790

1,619,141

1l .3t4,792

(3,470,5',12)

12
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North Marin Water District
Statements of Cash l'lows

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

$

2008 2007

1 r,560.230
(4,073.289)
(9,t 11,227)

(1,624,286) (4,002.03ti)

Cash flows fì'our operating activitics:
Cash recei¡rts fìont cuslomcrs fol'walcr salçs ancl sct'vices
Cash paid kr cmployces f or sularics and wagc.s

Cash ¡raid [o venclors ancl supplicrs for lnatelials and scrviccs

Net cash used in opcrating activit-ies

Cash flr.lrvs lìrrm non-ca¡lital lìnancing activitics;
Prcl¡lefly tax revcDue

Iìentrl rcrvenuc

Construction lawsuit settJornenl.

Sonorn¿t County Water Agcncy agl'çem(ìn[
Princi¡lal lcç,çived on nofcs rocoivlrblc
Principal issuccl on noles rcccivahle
/ ìrL..- -,,.- -.*.,-.,, :-,,\rtllL¡ ll(rll-( tlrl l.rl lllË | ! tLtltllò. I lU t

Nef cash proviclccl by non-capital {'iuancing activitics

C-'ash f lows lìonr capital ancl relatecl financing activitics:
Accluisition ancl constr:uction ol' ca¡:ital assets

Plocccds lì'orn ca¡lital contl'ibutions
Proccccls lìnm the issuance <ll'tlcbt
Princi¡ral paid on long-term deht
I¡rtercsl ¡raid On long-tcillr dobL

Procccds lì'om the sale of capital assets

Nef cash used in capilal ancl rclated fiuancing act"ivitics

(ìlsh l'lows fr<lnr invcsting itctivitics:
Plocccds fìorn sale of investlnents
Pul'c:hascs of invcstmcnts
lnvcstnrenf calnings

Net cash proviclcd by investing ¿ìctivities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year'

Cash ancl cash ccluivalents, cnd ol'year'

9,469,982
(3,tì68.779)
(9,603,241)

(t14,682)
28s,308

(296,757)
aa 4ÈÊ
.f / ,¿-)J

^r* 8r7 712

I t0,129
49,233

91,919
48.161

627.395

r98,907
(302,tì04)

I +ô, I -1+

(7,884,,158)

6,812,119
121,968

(402.009)
(557,983)

11,443

('t ,101,441)
3,3tt4,573
4,493,179
(226,423)
(37s,422)

20,.50tt

t94.914(1,286,260)

7,364,444
(3,14',7,020)

698,094

5,997,000
(2,999,031)

713,187

4.91 5,5 I I 3,7 r I ,150

721,1e8

3,559,50.5

2,075,458

4,281,30i

$ 6,356,761 4,28 t ,303

Rcconciliation ol'cash and cash equivalcnts to statctncnt of linancial ¡rosition;

Cash and cash ec¡uivalcnts $ 5,293,1 15

Resfricted asscts - cash ancl cash cquívalents 1,063,ó46

lÌrtal cash ¿nd cash cquivalgrts $ 6,356,761

2.9-57,ó03

323.694

4,281,291

Continucd tln next l)¿tgo

Sce accotn¡ralt),ing noles to the lrasic firlancial stittenìcnts
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North Marin \{ater District
Statements of Cash Flows, continued

For tlre Year Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

2008 20117

Reconciliation ol'o¡rerating loss to nef cash tlsed in

oporating acfivities:
Operaf ing loss

Adjusuneuts to recoltcile operating krss to net cash used in

opcratìng ûctivíties:
De¡rrecation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)Decrcase in assets:

Accounts receivable - watet'aud sewer sales and set'vices, ttcl

Accounls receivable * other
Materi al s and str¡r¡rlies iuventory

Pre¡laicl expenses and otlter de¡rsits
hrcrcase(Decre¿rse) in liabilities:

Accounts payablc and acctued expellses

Accrtrecl wages ancl related payables

Acclued clairns ¡:ayablc
Cusl<lmel aclvances tncl tleposits

Cotnpensateci absences

Post emplclyment retirentent benefìts

Total adjustnrcnts

Net cash uscd in operating acfivitics

Non-cash investing, capital and linancing tt'ansactiotls:

Change in fair-rnarkct value of invostmeuts

Contributcd capital
In-lieu ol' connection lbes

Capitalized intelest

See accompanying noles to the hasic Iìnancial statelnenls

897.223 (l

f; (r ,ó18,1 73) (3,997 ,035)

$ (z,sr 5,396) (2, t93,026)

1,761,673 1,490,077

( 1 68,1-53)

(so,714)
20,136
15,54tì

29,253
13,78'1

(87,403)
(650,530)

(77,102)

90, r 88

(2,383.672)

5,61 7

(38,378)
(22.760)

(936,159)

64,148
(671 )

(13r.r30)
r49,5t9

Í; t 7,383

4,68 r,260
153,124

3,956,986

3.612,(t40
86,2tì3
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

(l) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity

TheNorth Mzu'in WaterDistrict (DistricQ is an independent special districtfornred in April 1948, which
operates undel'the authority of Division l2 of the California Water Code. The District's service area
irrclrlrles tlre Citv rrf Nov:rfrl :trlircerrf rt'¡.1ç ¡tlrrs lrrrreverl rrcr¡c irr\L/eet l\lnr.irr f-¡rrrnrr¡ 'flra l-liclr.i¡r ir.-..- _,.J vr.rr¡rLr ¡,r

governed by a five-nrember Boarcl of Directors who serve ovellapping fbur-year: terms.

The criteria used in determir-ring the scope of the fin¿ulcial reporling entity is l¡ased on the pr:ovisiolrs of
Governrnertt¿rl Accounling Statements No. 14, The Finrntciu.l Re¡tortin¡4 En.tity, and No. 39, Detennining
Whetlter Certain Or¡ganiz,arions Are Conrponent Unit,ç (an amendment of Ncl. l4). The f)istrict is the
primaly governlnental unit basecl on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected
by the citizens in a genet'al populal election. Component r¡nits are legally separate organizations for wlrich
the elected officials of the prirnary govelnment are financially accountable. The District is fìnancially
.,^^^.,-¿^Ll^:f :¿ ^--^:--. -.-¡i,-, I r. c.t.tLruuttratrlc rr rt ulrputlrtiì i¡ vullllg lllaJU¡lty Ol tllc OI'g¿llllZatl(Jll S gOVel'ntllg DOOy illl0: l.) lt ¡S AOle tO
itnpose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential fbr the organization to provide specific
financial benef its to, or impose specifìc financi¿rl burtJens on, the primaly govenrment.

The Distl'ict's operations ¿ìr'e accounted for by the following service are¿ìs! some of which were originally
eslablished as Improvetnent l)istl'icts. Althougli the ln¡u'ovement Districts are legally separ¿ìte
organizatiotrs, they at'e reported herein as if they were part ol' the plimary government because the
primary governlnent controls the Improvement Districts and the Board of Directors serve ¿rs their
governing board. The f'ollorving service areas íu'e reported as blended cornponent units.

Novato Water Syslent - The Novaf.o Iùaiel Sysiem is ihe prinrary service ciivisioll of tire Disn'ict and
represents the basic pr:irnary colxponent ol'the District.

West Mørin Water System formally Point Reyes Sen'ice Area. - This service area began in 1970 as a

separate voter-approved Itnprovement District. Point Reyes was cousolidated with tlie Olema
Improvenretlt Disû'icl in 1996 ancl the Paladise Ranch Estate hnprovement District it"t2002, forrning the
West Marin Water System.

Oceana Marin Sewcr Service - By agteernent with a private developer, this service area was I'onned to
provrde sewer service to al'e¿1 resiclents commencing in June 1973.

Novøto Recycled Water Systurt - Tliis is a enterprise fund which was formecl by the District in 2007
which accotìnts fbr the operation of the District's recycled water treatnrent plaltt in a separate fund.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

Tlie District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that al'e
I'inanced and operated in ¿ manner sindlar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the Dist¡:ict
is iliat the cost of providing water or wastewater dis¡rosal to its sen¡ice area on a contiltuing basis be
financed or recoverecl primarily through user charges (watel sales and sewer service charges), capital
grants and simil¿r funding. Revenues and expenses are recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they ar:e earned and expenses are recognizecl
in the period incun'ed, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Operating revenues and expenses, such as water sales and sewer service charges along with water
purchases and wastewater disposal, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal
activity of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which each pafiy receives and gives Lrp

essentially equal values. Management, administration and depreciation expenses are also considerecl
opelating expenses. Othel levenues and expenses not included in the above categories are re¡rortecl as
non-operating revenues and expenses, Non-operating revenues alld expenses, such as grant funding,
investment incotne and interest expense, result ft'om non-exchange llansactions, in wlrich, the District
gives (receives) value without directly l'eceiving (giving) value in exchange.

l-5



North Marin'Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

(l) Reporting Entity and Summary of SignifTcant Accounting Policies, continued

C. Financial Rcporting

The Distlict's basic financial statelnents are ¡rresented in conformançe with the provisions of
Governnrental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, "Bosir: Finunci.al. Stcûen1en.ts -
anrl Manug,enxent's l)iscusr^ion anrlAnulysis -for Statc and Local. Govertmlcnt,s" (GASB No, 34). This
statement established revised financial repolling requirernents for state and Iocal govenlments throughout

the United States fbr the purpose of enhancing the understandability and usefulness of financial repofts.

GASB No. 34 and its related GASB pronouncernents provide for a revised view of frnancial information
and restructure the fornrat of financial ilrformation provided prior to its adoption. A stalement of net

assets replaces the balance sheet and reports assets, liabilities, and the difference between them as net

assets, not equity. A statenrent of revenues, expenses and changes in net ¿lssets replaces Lroth the income

statement and the statelnent of changes in retained ezu'nings and contributed capital. GASB No. 34 also

requires that the statement of cash flows be prepared using the direct method. Under the dilect method,

cash flows from operating activities are presented by lnajor categories.

IJnder GASB No. 34, enterprise funds, such as dre District, have the option of consislently following ol
not lbllowing prollouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Sütndards Board (FASB) subsequent

to November 30, 1989. The District has elected not to follow FASB standards issued after that date,

unless such standards are specifically adopted by GASB.

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets

1. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in confonnity with generally accepted accoulttittg
principles reqrrires management to make estimates and assurnptions that affect the repor:ted alnounts

of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the clate of the financial
statelnents and the re¡:olted changes in net assets during the [eportirtg period.

2. Cash and Cash Bquivalents

Substantially all of the District's cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The Distl'ict considers

all highly liquid investments with a rnatuilty of three months or less to be cash equivalettts.

3. Investments and Investment Policy

The District has adoptecl an investrnent policy directing the District's Auditor-Controller to deposit

funds in financial institutions.

Changes in market value that occur during a fiscal year are rccognized as investtnent income repofled

for that fiscal year. lnvestrnent incorne includes interest eanrings, changes in market value, and any

gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments.

4. Accounts Receivable

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. Management deems all
accounts receivable as collectible at ye¿u.end. Accol'dingly, an allowance for doubtful acÇounts lìas

not been recorded.

5. Property Taxes

The County of Marin Assessol:'s OlTice assesses all real and personal property within the County each

year. The County of Marin Tax Collector's OfÏces bills and collects the District's share of property
taxes ¿rnd assessments. The County of Marin Treasurer's Office remits cul'rent and delinquent
property tax collections to the District throughout the year, Property tax in California is levied in
accordance with Article l3A of the State Constitution at oue percenl (lo/c') of countywide assessed

valuations.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Bnded Jr¡ne 30,2008 and 2007

(1) Reporting Entity and Sumnrary of SignifTcant Accounting Policies, continued

Ð. Assets, LiabÍlities and Net Assets, continued

6. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets are fìnancial resources generated for a specific purpose such as capital projects or
debt service. These assets are lbr the benefit of a specifìed purpose iìnd, us such, are legally or
confraclually resti'ictecl by an external third-pzrty zrgreeurent.

7. Prepaid Bxpenses

Clertain payments to vendors reflects costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in tl-re basic financial statements.

L Capital Assets

ñ.nir.l rcrplc r¡¡nrri.orl .'rrll^* ¡nrrot-r¡rorl a-a ^.'^il-li--,1 .'t hi-t^.ia'rl ¡a¿ r tìl-r-i^r '.^li^., 1..,. . ^r rl^^rvu c¡v v(rPrrqt¡¿-uu qt rrrrìrur rLúr vu.ìr. u¡LìLr rLt l/w¡rt] ¡rq¡ .ìLt t¡¡v

capitalization thrcshold for capitalizing equiprnent purchases at $1,000. Donated assets ¿rre recorded
at estimatecl cost al the clate of donation. Upon retirernent or other disposition of capital assets, the
cosl and related acculnulafed depreciation are l'emoved fì'oru the respective balances and any gains or
losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorcled on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets ¿rs f'ollows:

o Dam * 100 years
. Transmission and distribution systems - 30 to 7.5 years
o Treatment plant - 75 years
c Buildings and stolage facilities * 50 to 75 years
. Equipment and vehicles * 5 to l0 years

9. Compensated Absences

The District's employees have a vested interest in accrued vacation time. All vacation hours will
eventually be either used or paid-off by the Distlict, Employees earn vacatiolr time on a semi-rnonthly
basis. Ernployees normally earn and use their current vacalion time with a small porlion being unused
each year. As this occurs, the District incurs a future obligation to pay for these unused hours ¿urd

¿rccrued a liability for such accurnulated and unpaid vacation time.

Full-time District employees earn sick leave at a rate of one day per month. District employees rnay
elect to be paid ltrr accumulated ancl unused sick leave in excess of 90 days, at a rate of one-half ol'
the value of'such accumulated amount. 'Ihe District has accrued a liability fbr such excess amounts.

10. Water and Sewer Sales

Water sales are bille<J on a bi-monthly cyclical basis. Estirnated unbilled water and sewer sales and
service charges through June. 30tl' have been accrued as o1'year encl.

11. Capital Contributions

Capital contributions reprcsent cash ancl capital asset additions contributed to the Distr:ict by propeÍy
owlìers, granting agencies or real estate develo¡rers clesiring services that require capital expenditures
ol capacity commitrnent.

12. Capital and Operating Grants

When a gr"ant agreement is approved and eligible expenditures are incurred, tlre amount is recorded as

a f'ederal capital or operating grant receivable on the statement of net assets and as capital glant
contribution ot operuting grant revenue, as appropriate, on the staternent of revenues, expenses and
changes in ¡ret assets.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statcments

For the Years Ended June 300 2008 and 2007

(1) Re¡rorting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets, continued

13. Budgetary Policies

The District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and evaluatiolt pul'poses.

Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by compafison of actual reveltue ¿rnd expense witlr

¡llannecl revetìue ancl expense for the period. Ençurnbrance accounting is not used to account I'or

commitments related to unperformed contracts fbr construction and services.

14. Net Assets

The financial statements utilize a lìet assets presentation. Net assets are categorized as follows:

o Net Investnrent in Capitat Assets - Tliis component of net assets consists of capital assets,

net of acculnulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding debt against the acquisition,
construc(ion or irnplovelnent of those assets.

r Restricted Net Assets - This colnponent of net assets consists of constraints placed on net

assets use through external constraints irn¡rosed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulatior-rs of other governments or constraints irnposed by law through constitutionâl
provisions or enabling legislation.

o Unrestricted Net Assets - This component of net assets consists of net assets that do nol

meet the definition of re.,gtric:tetl or n.at inttestnten.t in ca¡tital a,çsets.

(2) Prior Period Adjustments

2007 - Chønge in Accounting Policy

The Distl'ict's prior accounting ¡rolicy, based on recommendations from the external auditor, was to
capitalize as an intangible asset (entitlement costs) any direct payrnents to the Sonotna County Water

Agency (Agency) for the construction of the Agency's transmission and distribution system. This asset

was can'ied on the I'inancial statements at its original cost basis and was not amortized over a contractual

termlimit. This accounting policy did not agree with generally accepted accounting principals for tlie
treatment o1 this palticular lransaction.

ln 2007, the District retroactively changed its method of accounting fbr this type of transactiotr to be

expensed as illcurred. Therefore, the ¡rortion of this adjustment applicable to the year ended June 30, 2006

and for prior years in the amount of $3,470,572 has been treated as a prior period adjusttnent to the June

30, 2006 net assets balance. Had this change been applied to the year ended June 30, 2006, the effect on

the change in net ¿rssets woulcl h¿rve been a reduction of $ 107, t 24.

2008 - Non-Capitttlized Security Upgrades and Non-Expensed Engineering Proiect Costs

Ill 2008, the District continued to ilrcur costs related to security upgrades for its infrastructul'e capital

assets; hclwever, in200J, the Distlict decided to expense its securily upgrades accumulated costs to date,

In 2008, it becarne apparent thal the total of those prior and curent costs was significanf enough to add

tangible value to the STP project, and therefbre, the District decided to retloactively capitalize the

$ 133,682 expensed security upgrades to its construction-in-plocess Íìccount in the current yeâr.

hl 2008, tlle District recognized an advance for construction of $15,446 as a capital contribution from a

developer for a project in its Oceana Marin Sewer service area. However, the District should have offset
that advance against the accurnulated engineering costs in CIP of $1-5,446 for the project. The $15,446 is

immaterial to the overall presentation of the District's trasic financial statements, but it could be

consiclered to be a njaterial adjustment to the Oceana Marin Sewer segment of the District and is therefbre

treated as a prior period acljustment. Had these changes been applied to the year ended June 30, 2007, the
efl'ect on the change in net assets would have been an increase of $l I8,236 ($133,682-$15,446).
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Finallcial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

(2) Prior Period Adjustment, continued

2008 ¿ul, I

$ 11,314,192

1,619.141

(3,410,512)

133.682
(1.5,446)

$ 80,319,790 15,46-7,961

(3) Cash and InvestmenLs

Cash and invostments ¿rs of June 30, ate classilìcd in the accr'xl¡ranying l'inanci¿rl staf etnents as lollows:

¿UUö ¿I'I' I

Net assefs. beginning ol'ycar

Change in not asscLs

Atljuslrucnt lrrl cirungc irr uccourrtiltg policy
Adj u sl ment f'or non-oapi I al i zecl sccuri ty upglades
Adjustlnent lÌlr conllibufecl capital lì'oln developel

Net assefs, end ol year

Cash antl cash ec¡uivalcnts

Restrictccl - cash ¿urd cash equivalenls
lnve stmcnts

Re stricted -- investnrents

Total cash and invcstlnents

Cash au<J illvestnlents as ol June 30, cousist ol'thc lìlllowing:

$ 10,4tì0,039 t2,250,113

2008 2007

75,463,961

4,7 -j7.593

$ s,293,1 r 5

r,063.ó46

439,960

3,683,318

2,957,603

l,_123,61)4

4.293,653

3.675,163

Cash on hancl

De¡losits with linancinl instilutions
Deposits with County of Malin llìreasnry

lnvestnrcnts

Total cash and invcsturents $ 10,480,039 12,250,113

$i 3s0
1.52,656

21,629

t0,299,404

350

5.6 t7

23,02s

12,221,121
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Bnded June 30,2008 and 2007

(3) Cash and Investments, continued

Investments Authorized by the Cølifornia Govcrrunent Code and the District's Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance with the

California Government Clode (or the District's investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also

identifies cefiain provisions of the California Governrnent Code (or the District's investment policy,
where more restrictive) that address interest rate dsk, credit risk, and concentlation of credit risk. This
table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the

provisions of debt agreemerìts of the Distlict, rather than the general provisions of the Califbrnia
Government Code or the District's investment policy.

Authorized
Investnlent TVfre

Maximum
Mahrrity

Maxinrum
Percentage

Of Portfolio *

Maximum
fnvestnrerrt

in One Issær

Statc ancl hcal Agency Bonds 5 years 10% ñrne
U.S. Tì'easuly Obligalions 5 yciu's*'r' 75% Nlte
U.S. Agcncy Sæul'itics 5 yeat's*t' Jío/o ñrne
Banker's Acceplanccs 180 days l}G/o 30ol:

Cornmelcial Papu 270 days 10o/o l0o/o

Non-negotiable Certilicatos of Dqxrsit 1 yenl 1001, ñrne

Negotiable CellilÌcates ol'Deposit 5 ycau's 10o/o l'ùrne

McrJiu¡n-Tcmr Nolcs 5 years 30Vct None

Repurchase ageemenls 30 clays 10o/t, Iùtue

Moncy Market Mutual Funds N/A 10Q/o l0%

CalilbrnialocalAgencylnvtxt¡lenl Fund(LAIF) N/A 15% Nkrnc

C"rlil'ornia Assct Mimagerrcnt H'ogt'aln (CAMP) N/A 75o/r¡ ñrne
* Excluding alnourìLs held by lroucl û'ustce that ile nol subjocl. to Cali I'ol'nia Govenrrrcnt Ccxle rcstriclions.
t";' Exoepl when authol'izecl by the Distlict's legislatìve lxldy in acu:rdance with Governmenl Ctxle Seclion .531il1

Investments Authorized by Dcbt Agreentents

lnvestlnelrt of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements,

rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District's investment policy.

Custodiøl Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for dtposits is the risk that, in the event of the failurc of a depository I'inancial
institution, a government will not be ¿rble to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collater¿rl

securities that are ìn the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for intte,stntenrs is the risk
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparly (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a goventment will
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
anothel' party. With respec{ to investurents, custodial cledit risk generally applies only to direct
investments in malket¿rble securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect
investlnent in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Iror the Years Bnded June 300 2008 and 2007

(3) Cash ancl Investmentso continued

Custodial Credit Risk, contitru ed,

The California Government Code and the f)islrict's investment policy do not contain Iegal or policy
requireurents that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than
lhe followirlq ¡rrovision foldenosits: The Califol'nia Govelnrnenl Codc reauires that a lìnancial insr.itution(- ¡ - -'t--_""

secure deposits ttrade by state or local govemmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by ade¡lository r"egulated ulldel"st¿te law (uuless su waivctl by l"hc guvcrrulental urrit), autl, the
Districl's investment policy that requires no rnore than two{hirds of the District's deposits in a depository
shall be collateralized by rnortgage-backed securities, with the remaincler to be secured try non-mortgage-
backed securities. The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool rnust equal at least
l10o/o of the total arïount deposited by the public agencies, California law also allows financial
inslitutions to secure District cleposits by pledging first h'ust dc.ecl mortgage notes having a value of 150%
of'the secured public de¡rosits. Of the Distlict's b¿ulk balances, up to $100,000 is f'ederally insured and
the relnainittg balance is collateralized in accorclance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities
arc not held in the District's nanle.

In,vestment itt Støte lnvestment PooI

The Distlict is a voluntary participanl i¡r lhe Local Agency Investrnent lìuncl (LAlÌ.) that is regulated by
the Calil'ornia Governtnent Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The f'air
value of the District's illvestrnent in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial staternents at
amotlnts based upon the Distr:ict's pl'o-r'ata sh¿ue of the fair value pror,ided by LAIF f'or the entire LAIþ-
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost o1'that polttblio). The balance available for withdrawal is based
on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which al'e recorded on an alnoltizrd cost basis.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30.2008 and 2007

(3) Cash and InvestmenLs, continued

Intcrest Rate Risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely af'fect the fair value of an

investment. Generally, the longel the rnaturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value

to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate

risk is by purchasirrg a conrbination of shofter ternr and longer ternr investlnents and by tirning cash flows
fiom rnaturities so that â portion of the poltfblio matures or corrìes close to maturity evenly over time as

necessaly to provide requiretnents for cash flow and liquidity needed for opelations. lnlbrlnation about

the sensitivity of the fair v¿rlues of the District's investrnerrts to market interest rate fluctuations is

providecl by the following table that shows the distribution of the District's investments by maturity date:

Inveslrnents at Junc .30, 2008. consistcd of thc l'ollowing: Remaining Maturity (in Months)

Invgstment Tvpe

Local Agency Inveslnrent. Funcl

U.S. Tl'easury notes

Celelal Electlic Co, notc @ 4.250(n,

Goldnral Sachs notc @ 6.f\150/t,

Wclls Fargo notc (,ì 6.450%

Olena genclal ollligation bond

'Iotal

Investment Tv¡¡e

Local Agcncy Investrncnt Fuld
U.S. Tlcasury notcs

Fcderal Home Loan llank seculities

J.P. Molgan note @) 4.12-5%'

Merlill Lynch note @-r 4.0007r,

Olenra gcncral obligation bond

'Iotal

lü 10,299,404 '7,182,t46

Amount
12 months

r¡r less

13 tt¡ 24
months

25-é0
months

1,00tì,4fi)
1,038,090

1,044,990

3.091,540

More than
60 nronths

6,fl6,126
1.006,020

1,008.460

r,038,090
I,014,990

25,71 8

6.176,t26
r,006.020

25,718

25,71 I

lnvestrnLìnls at June 30, 2007. consisteil of the lolkrwing: lìemaining Maturitv (in Months)

Anrount
12 nronths

or less

13 tt¡24
months

25-60
montlrs

More than
6ll months

25,416

25.416

$ 4,2s2,305
|.959,920
3.991,260

997.800
994,420

4.252,305
989.920

r,999.690

9S7,800

994,420

970.000
t,991,570

25 .41 ('¡

6 12,22 t.tzt 9,234,135 2,961,570
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

(3) Cash and Investments, continued

Cr¿dif Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investmenÍ will not full'ill its obligation to the holder
of the investmenl. This is measured by the assignrnent of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
l'ttfine olcanizatio¡t. Preselllcd lrelow is the nrinirnuln raling reouired hv lrvhere:rnnlicahleì the Califnlni:r--'-'--c --Õ-"- "J \ ""-'-
Government Code, the Distlict's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual r'ating as of year
end l'ol'eacli iuve;luretit typu.

Credit ratings at Junc 30, 2008, consisted ol'thc {iflowing:

Lnvcstnrent l'vpe Anrount

Local Agency Inves(nrellt lrunti $ 6,176,126
LI.S. Treasury notcs 1,006,020

Genelal Electric Co. notc @ 4.250% 1,008,460

Goldmar Sachs nole kt 6.8'l5la 1.038.090

Wclls Falgo noter @r (r.450¿2, I ,014,990
Olcnra gencral obligaliou boncl ?:1,7 t8

rotal $ ___11,!¿ee4fl1_

Clcdit latings at Junc 30, 20(J7. co¡rsistocl of rhc lbllowing:

Minirnunr
Legal
Rating

Ilxeur¡rt
l'ronr

I)isclosure

6.116,126

2-5.7 f I

N/A
AAA

A-
A-
A-

N/A

Rutirrgs
AAA AA+ to AA-

t,00ó,020
r,008,460

I,038,090
r,044,990

2,0r4,4tì0 2,083,080

Ratings
ffiAnrounf

Mini¡nuln
Lcgal
Rating

ó,20r.rì44

Ilxernpl
Itrr¡ll

I)isck¡surelilvesfrnent 'l'yne

Local Agencv lnvcstnlenl Funcl

U.S. I'reasury rxrtcs

Fcdclal Home Loan lJank sccuritics
J.P. Molgan notc @ 4, 1257¡

MerLill Lynch notc Gù 4.0007o

Olcura gencral obligation boncl

Total

$ 4,2s2,30s
1.959,920
'l,e9t,260

997,800
994,420
25,4t6

N/A
AAA
AAA

A-
N/A

4,252,105

\.959,920
3,991,2í)

997.tt00
994.420

25,416

4,277,721 .5.951.180 t,992.220$ l2.2!t,tzt

Concentrøtion of Credit Risk

The investrnent ¡rolicy of the District contains no limitations on the amourlt that can be invested in any
one issuer beyond that stipulated by the Califomia Government Code. The followilìg is a list that
represents So/a ot'lxofe of total District investments invested ill one issuel.

Amount
Issucr Investmelrt type>5o/o 2008 21107

U.S. Treasnry notcs

Fedcral Homc Loan Bank sccut'itics

General lllcctric Clo. nole @) 4.250q(,

Gofdman Saclìs noto @) 6.875ll,
Wells Fargo note @) 6.450%

J.P. Molgan notc @) 4,1251(¡

Mcrrill Lynch note @ 4.000()l'

Feder¿rl agency sccuritics

Fcderal agency securitics
Mcd i unl-l"et'tr cot'por'¿rtc notc

Medi um-torrì c(x'pOrats Ít0te

Modium-terrn corporats note

MccJi u rn-tcrnl co!'poralc notg

Medium-tcm corporatc rx)lg

$ 1,006,020 r.9s9,920

3,991,260
r,ü)tt.460
1,038,090

1,044,990

991

994
,800

,420
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Bnded June 30,2008 and 2007

(4) Internal Balances

Due To/From Other Funds

ìnternal balanccs consist of'the f'ollowing as ofJune 30, 200t1 as tbllows

Receivable Payable
Purrrose Fund Fund Amourrt

Advance Novalo Watcr West Marin $ _59tJgf*
Internaf balances oonsist o1'tltc lbllowing as of June 30, 2007 as lbllows:

Receivable Payable
Purpose l'und Fund Amount

Advancc

Advance

Novato Walcr'

Norrato Water

Wost Marin $

Novato Recycled

Total $

440,300

233,045

673,345

The Novato Water segment continues to advance the West Marin segment funds fbr operations due to its
negative operating reserve situation. Repayrnent terurs continue to be worked out with repayment of the

principal balance advanced. Interesl. continues to accrue on the balance at the monthly retum rate of the

Di stli ct' s investment portfolio.

The Novato Recycled enter¡rrise fund repaid the Nov¿tto Water segment its advancement in 2008.

(5) Note Receivable - Black Point Golf Links

This District has entered into a contractual agreement with the Black Point Golf Links whereby the golf
course agreed to reilnburse the District for constructiort cost incurred for a new recyclecl water treatment

plant, in-lieu of connection fees. The reinrbur:sement is collected in bi-monthly installments through

Þebruary 2024, inclucling interest at a rate of 2.400o/o. As of Juue 30'r', the amount receivable undel'the
contract is as follows:

The balance al June 30. consists of the f<lllowing:

2008 2007

Notc receivablc - Black Point Crlll'Links - ctll'rcnt ¡rot'tiorr
Note rcceivablc - Black Point Golf Links

Note reccivablc - tsl¿rck Point Golf Links

$ 114,332

3,074,612
170,206

3,248,944

3.419,150$ 3,248 ,944

(6) Notes Receivable - Employee Computer Loans

The Distl'ict allows employees to purchase personal computel's alrd to secure a loan from the District to

pay for: the purchase of the computer up to $3,500 per person. These employee computer loans are repaid

to the Distl'ict over a peliod of up to 36 months though payroll deduction with interest rates applied that

are based on the District's investment portfolio return l'ate at the origination of the loan plus one percent.

As of June 30, 2008 and 2007 the Disn:ict had various outstanding loans totaling $8,164 and $4,509,
respectively.
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North Marin'Water District
Notes to the Basic l-inancial Statements

For the Years Ended.lune 300 2008 and 2007

(7) Notes Receivable - Employee Housing Assistance Loans

The District's Employer Assisted Housing Prograrn (Program) allows up to $300,000 to be loaned to an
em¡rloyee for a peliod ol'up 1o l5 years fbr the purchase of a home within the District's service area. This
will allow the employee to respond lapidly to customer calls or ernergencies aff'ecting the operation of the
Dislt'ict. Re¡rayment is due npon sale of the employee's residence, termination of ernployment, or other
events as described in the Program doculnents. Interest earned on the loan is contingent upon and directly
propot'tional to the ;rppreciation in value occuruing on the purchased property. The followilrg is a listing ol'
erlployee housiug assistatrce loans ancl their corresponding origination dates as follows:

Thc balaucc at.lunc 30, consisfs of tlrc lblkrwing:

Origiuation 2008 2007

Aplil2000 $

August 2004

Sept. 2004

Octobcr 2006

Scpt. 2007

Nov. 2007

2s0.000
-{y.Lt^,

¡oo.o0o
140,000

1.50,000

r 12,000

2s0,000
{y.1.( }( I

300.000

lbtal $ 879,200 70 r,200

(8) Capital Assets
l\-,--¿---- -z: -,- l,- ñ - -Lû ¡r Sf rU CII t i't- I It - f ru greSS

'l'he l)istl'ict has been involved in various constructiorr projects throughout the year. The balances of the
various construction projects thaf comprise the construcliou-in-¡rrogress balances at June 30 are as
follows:

2006 2007 2008

The baìancc al June 30, colrsisfs o1'thc l'ollowiltg projects:

Developer constt'uctioì - Novato Wa{tx'
Dcvclopcl construolion * Ntlvaf.o Recyclod
Developer constl'uction -. Wcsl Marin Watcr
Devolo¡rel construc{-ion - Occ¿rna Marin Scwct'
Stíìl'lìnd trcatnìcrìl plant colrstrucl itrn
Stafl ord tr oírtulent ¡rlant design
Olcma tank CEQA construofiou
Rcplacc Paradisc Ranch Est¿rtcs t¡nk
Solar poweled lake aelatíon
Ccnter Roa<I tank
Palmcr Drive f unk
Rccycled waler lacility coÌrstruction
Recyclcd watcr làcility cxpaursion

Outlct towel sluce gatc

staflbld treatment planl: secul'ily Upgradcs

Accounting soliwal e conversion
Various other ninol projccts <$ 100,000

Total constrtlclion-in-ptrrcess l)cr ycíìr

$ 4,1ì92,318 1,541.604

î' 23.21'7,455

t62,888
t].403

r 4,,569,51 I

164,719
561,783

399.70'l

3 r 3,357
108,443

452,rì0rì

610.t9t
140,274
'74.69t

179,302

2.948,092
491,730

158.494
28,323

399,707

193,875

2,t45,81O
?\o ?r5

3.316.341

137.557

337,604
133,682

103,674

143.914

3.829
r 8,ó01

2,240.754
l.0rì3,631

9.51 ,826
5ZÍt,204
428,904

137,45(¡

205.532
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Staternents

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

(8) Capital Assets, continued

Changes in capif al assets for thc year were as follows
llalallcc

20117

Additions/
Transfers

Deletions/
Transf'ers

Balance
2008

N<ln-dopreciable asscts:

Land and land rights
Cbnstrucl ion-i tr-¡rrocess

Total non-cleprerciable asscts

Depr'eciahle assets:

Distributìon systenì

Treatrnenl plant

Slolage facilities
'Iranslni ssitxt system

Soulce facilitics
Sewor l'acilities
Structures and intpt ovetnents

Othel ¡rlant and equi¡rmen{

Total depleciable assets

Accumulatcd depreciation:
Distribution sys{cln

l.reatmenl plant

Storage 1'acilifies

Transrnissiol.r systen't

Source facilitics
Sewel ficilities
Structurcs atrd inr¡rrovcnrents

Other' ¡llant ancl equ i¡rment

Ttital accumulated depreciation

Total deprcciable assets, net

Totrl ca¡lital assets, net

2,984,826

12,811,125 2,984,826

$ |,473,091
1 I,398,034

1,473,091

7,t40,341(7,242,s19)

(7,242,519\ 8,613,432

43,560,867

n,557,794
I I, t 40,1 59

5,4rì9,830

3,508,8í)
686,181

1.778,388

2,818,6rì6

7,253,989
4,020,980

565,784

6,210

( I ,263) 50,rì 13,s93

21,5"18,774

I I,705,943
5,4u9,830

3,s08,8fi)
692,451

1,778,3tì8

2,966,633295 128 (r47,rrìr)

86,540,165 12,142,151 (48,444) 98,534,412

(10,532.464)
( l,s06, 1 89)
(2,630,070)
(1,757,476)

(88 r,420)
(r 89,441)
(691,285)

( r,846,505)

(608,726)
(56r,473)
(1e4,68 r)

(73,1 3s)
(36,112)
( 14,998)
(42,570)

(229,978) 62,1 l0

(il,14r,r90)
(2,067,662)
(2,824,7s1)
(r,830,61r)

(911,s32)
(2Q4,439)

(733,8ss)
(2,014,3'.t3)

0) ( I ,761,673) 62,1 r 0 (21,734,4t3)

66,505,9 r 5 10,380,47tì (86,334) 76,800,059

fi 19,377,040 13, 365,304 (7,328,tì53) 85,413,491
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Iror the Years Bnded June 300 2008 and 2007

(8) Capital Assets, continued

Changes in capital assets lìr the yeal weìre as follows
Iìalance

2006
Additior¡s/
Transfers

Dcletions/
Transf'ers

Balance
2001

Non-doprec:iablo assets:

Lancl and land rights
(hns(rucl ion-r n-proccss

Tolal non-deprcciable assets

l)cplcciable assets;

Distribution systçln
'Ireatrnent plant
Stolage facilities
Transniission systcm

Soulce facilities
Sewcr iàcilities
Slruclures arrcl inr¡rrovenrents

Other planÍ and equi¡nrent

'l'otal depreciable assets

Accumulatecl depleci ation :

Distribution sysfclrì
'l-reiatlnent planl
St<x'agc lacilitics
Transrnission systcm

Source facilities
Sewer lãciliticrs

Structurcs and irnprovenrenl s

Othel plant and equipnrent

Total acculnulated depreciation

Total depr:eciable asst:ts, nef

'fotal capil"al assets, net

t,473,091
23,271,455 l(1,6(¡2,521

24,750,546 t0,662,527

$ |,473,091
I 1.398,0i4(22,s41,94rì)

(22,541,948) t2,811,125

37,548,122

1,854,269

10,578,377

5,489,830

3,508,860
686,1 8 r

1,778,388

2,451,741

6,012,145
r 5,988,357

561,7tì2

(284,832)
43,560,8(i7

11,s57,794

I I,140,159
5.489,830

3,.508,rìff)

686,r8r
t,778,388
2,81 8,ó8rr375,.5ó5 (8,626)

ó3,896,374 22,931,849 (293,4s8) rì6,540,7ó5

1 16,538

(ltì,664,r3r) (1,4e0,0'7't) I 19,3s8 (20,034,rì-50)

45,232,243 2t,447,772 (r74,r00) 66,505,9r5

$ 69,982,789 32,110,299 (22,716,048) 79,377,04(\

(9,980,{ì82)

(1,257,369)
/a AA1 0AÀ\(;r+{ I t(ì(ì+ 

'(1,684,342)
(ti45,308)

(174,464)
(640,93e)

( r,638,943)

(s5 r,s¡ì2)
(365, j5rì)
/too loZ\I t()(r.¡()1r,

(13,134)
(3ó, r r 2)
(14,971)
(s0,346)

(2r 0,382) 2,820

(10,s32,46,+)

(r ,.506,189)
¿^ ¿tlì ¡\-¡r\
\.1,r)Jt,l.\, /\-r,

\t,757,476)
(88 r ,420)
(189,44 r)
(69r,285)

(1,846,-505)
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statcments

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

(9) Accrued Claims Payable

The District comlnelrced self-insuring its workers' conrpensation obligation on July 1,2004, and has

chosen to establish risk financing internal service funds wherc assets are set aside for clainr settlements

¡rssociated with the risk of loss up to certain limits for workers' cotnpensation claims. The District has

engaged an outside clailns adurinister for clairns adjustments. The Districl carries a wotkers'
compensation excess insurance policy for claims that exceed $750,000.

In fiscal year 2009, the Distl'ìct will purchase insurallce to cover its workers' compensation obligation and

will no longer lre self-insuring itself for tlrese clairns.

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the accl'ued coverage alnounts in any ol'the last thlee fiscal years

and therc were no reductions in the District's excess insurance coverage during the years ending June 30,

2008,2007 and 2006. Liabilities arc recorded when it is probable that a loss has lreen incumed and the

at-ì1ount of the loss can be reasonably estirnated. The accrued clairns payable balance includes Íln atnount

for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR).

Thc balance at June 30, consists of'the lif lowing:

Accluecl clains ¡rayablc, beginning ol'year

Cl¿rirns recognized

Cllairns scttled
Cliatns adjustments

Accrued claims payablc, end ol'year

2008 2007

$

1 1 1"960

(10) Compensated Absences

Cofiìpensated absences comprise unpaid vacation and sick leave which is accrued as earnecJ.

Changcs lo cornpensatecl absences lbr'2001t, wole as lollows:

Ilalance Balance Current l,ong-ternr
20117 llarned Taken 2008 Porti<¡n Portion

r I 1,960

2,761
(142,103)

.52.-539

22,r)Z(t

138,64'l
(104,870)

55,257

!È 24,551

$ 439,353 7 55,541 (832,643) 362,251

llalance
2007

Current
Portion

271,688

l,ong'term
Portion

90,-s63

Chaugos to compenstted absences 1'or 2007, wcre as lìlllows:

Ilalancc
2006 IJar¡red Taken

$ 339,s90 8.53,ti62 (1s4,099) 439,353 I0r),838 329,515

(11) Post Employment Benefits Payable

The District, in anticipatìon of adopting the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)

Staternent No. 45 - Accounting and Fin¿ut<:ial Reporting b.v Employers J'or Post-entpl.oy,mcn,t Benertt,s

Other Tha.n Pensions it't liscal year 2009, estimated its annual rec¡uirecl post employrnent benefits

contribution and corresponding liability for fiscal year'2008. This estimated liability will be rccalculated

in fiscal year 2009 when the District receives its levised actuarial repofl arnd adopts GASB No. 45.

The balance at June 30, consists of the lbllowing:

Post cmployrnent benclìts ¡rayablc, bcgiuning ol'ycar

Annual require<l contribution
Retired eur¡rloyecs post employnlcnt meclical bentfìt paymenf s

Post enr¡rloymenl henel'its payable, encl of year

2008

$

212,191
(1n2,003)

$ 90,1 88
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

(12) Long-term Debt

Changes in long-tcrnr dcbt ¿rnounts for thc ye ar wcrcr as'f'ollows:

llalance
2007 Additions

Principnl
Pavllrelrt.

Ilalancc
200n

Cr¡l'rrrnt
Portion

Long-lelm dcht:
llonrls payabk:;

1973 Genelal obligation bonds-- Pll-3 $

1975 Cençr'al ol¡ligqtion bonds - (,)t"-2
I 9[:10 lìevenue troncls - PlìE- I

I 98 I llevenuc bonds - Pl{-(r

Total bontls payable

L,oans payable:

1977 LJ.S. EDA loan - Novirl() Wíìter
1977 tl.S. EDA loan -. West l4arin
2003 Hamilton bounrlaly liability
2005 I)WR loan - Novato \ryatcr'

2005 SWIìCB loan - Novato lìecyr:led

'fotal lomrs ¡rayablc

Total long-telnr clcht

142,344
2(t,41t4

190.477
I 5. t0-5,3 r 9

4,264,545

( l I ,456)
(r,701)

(t90,177)

t30,888
t8,77'1

7s,000
?6"593

133,üX)

r29,000

(l r,0m)
(.2.792)

(7,000)

(7,000)

64.üX)
23.fì0I

t26,0{x)
r22,000

12,ü)0
? o?1

8,000

363.s93 (27,7()Z) 33.5.80 r tt c)) I

,590.86(r

38,01-s ( 170,583)

15,696,18.5

4,t31,97't t?4 tqo

_ t2,7?7,t61

$ 20,086,756

628,8rì I

62tì,88 r

Additions

(374,2t7) l(),1)77,82'7 t'74,199

(402,009) 20,3 r3,62fr 197,122

Changes in long-telm clcbl auiounls fìx the ycal u,ele as lirllotvs:

2006

f)-:..,,:....f

lJavnlents

n..t,.,..^^

2007
Cr¡rronf
Portion

Long-tcrnr debt:

Ììontls payablc:

1973 Genelal obligation bonds - PIì-3 5ì

I975 Gencral obligation boncls - OL-2
1980 lìevcrnuc bonds * PIìE-l
1981 lìo'enue honcls - lrlì-(¡

Total l¡onds payable

Loans payahle:

1977 Ll.S. EDA loan * Novatr¡ Water'

1977 U.S, ÈDA loan - West Malin
2(Ð3 Hunilton boundnly liabilily
2005 I)WR loan - Novato Watcr'
2005 SWIìCB loan --Novrto lìecyclcd

lÌfal krans payable

Total long-leln dcbt $

{ì6,00t)

29.243
t40,000
t4 r ,000

(l t,000)
(2,rr50)
(7,fin)

( r2,r)00)

(.12,650)

7-s,üx)
26,59,1

l3:3,üX)

129.fi)O

ll,m0
2,7Í16

7,000

3L)(t,243 363,"593 20,786

r.53, r I 5

22,014
37 r ,883

t4,'t9t:132

(r0,77l)
( r ,-596)

( r8 r,40at

142.344

20,478
190,47'l

15, 105,319

4,264,545
3 13,9tì7

4.264,545

15,338,404

t5,"t 34,647

4,578,532

4,578,s32

(193,'173) 19,723,1(t3

(226,423) 20,086,756 20,786
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30.2008 and 2007

(12) Long-Ierm Debt, continued

Ilonds Payable

1973 General Obligøtiott Bon.ds * Issuc PR-3

On Septernber 5, 1973, the District issued general obligation bonds totaling $250,000 to acquir:e and

improve the Inverness Park and Point Reyes Water Companies. The bond issuance was purchased in its
entir:ety by the U.S. Department ol' Agriculture, I.-armers Home Adrninistratiolt Rural Developtnent

Adrninistration on tr 5Vo, 4}-year payback basis.

Thebondsarescheduledtonraturein20l3.Principal andinterestarepayableannuallyonJanuary l'' and

at a rate o1'5.0007o. Future annual debt service requiretnents on the bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2009
20t0
201 t

2012
2013

Total

I-ess cult'ctrt por'tìon

Total non-culrenl

$ t 2,000

I2,000
t3,000
r3,000
r4,000

3,200
2.600
2,000

I,3-50

700

t5,200
r4,600
ts,000
14,350

14,100

64,000

12,000)

9,850 73,850

$ 52,000

1975 Genet'øl Obligation Bonds - Issue OI-2

In 1975, the t)istrict issued general obligation bonds totaling $70,000 to acquirc arnd improve the Olema

Water Company owned by 'W. Rohert Phillips and others and to service that area. The bonds were

purchased by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), then upon demand of the IJSDA the bonds

were repurchased by the District's Novato Water segrnent on June 1, 1991.The interest rate paid to the

Novato Water segment on the bonds was thereafter reset to the higher of the rate earned by the District's
investments or the average rate of the Novato Water segment general obligation bond debt.

The boncls are scheduled to mature in 2015. Plincipal artd interest are payable annually on January l*' and

at a rate of .5.000û/o. Future ¿urnual clebt service requirements on the bonds ate as follows:

lisr:al Year Princinal Interest l'otal

2009

2010

20ll
2012
201 3

2014-2015

'Iotal

Less current portion

Tofal non-current

$
,J g)7

3,070
2, ))'-),

3,3tì4

3,553

7,64t1

r, t90
1,044

890

729
sfi)
578

4,113
4,114
4,il 3

4,113

4,113
8,226

$ 23,801

(2,1)23)

4,991 28,"192

$
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Finaltcial Statements

For the Years Bnded June 30,2008 and 2007

(12) Long-Term Debto continued

Bontls Puyahle, cotttinued

1980 Revenue Bonds - Issue PRE-I

On August 22,1980, the District issued revenue bonds totaling $240,000 fbr the systern rehabilitation ol'
the Paradise Ranch Estates (PRE) water distribution system.

Thc bonds are scheduled to ¡lature ín 2020. Principal is payablu arurually otr April l'' antl irrte¡'cst is
payable serni-annually on October 1'r and April l't at a rate of 5.0007o. Future annual debt service
requirements on the bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year Princi¡ral Interesf Total

2009

2010

201 i
2012.

2013
20t4-20r8
20tL)-2020

8,000

8.000

9.000
9,000

10,000

56.000

26,000

6,300

5,900

5,500

5,050

4.600
l5,rs0

1,950

14,:300

13,900

t4,-500

14,0.50

14,600

7t,1-50

$

27 950

Total $ I2(r,000

(!,Q0q)

$ I1t3,000

44,450 r 70,450

L,ess current porlion

'l'otal non-cun'cnf

I98I Revenue llonds - Issue PR-6

On August 28, 1981, the District issued leverìue honds totaling $217,800 to finance the fru"ther work
needed to rehabilitate the Point Reyes arrd hrverness Park water systems including the addition ol'a
300,000 gallon tank in Point Reyes Station and a I00,000 gallon tank in lnverness Patk.

The boncJs are scheduled to mature in 2022. Principal is payable annually on July I't and interest is
payable semi-annually on.Iuly I't ¿rnd January I't at a rate of 5.0007o. Future annual debt service
requirements on the bonds are as l'ollows:

Fiscal Ycar Principal lnferesl Total

2001)

201 0

2011

2012
2013

20I4-201I
2019-2022

Total

Less cun'cn[ portiorr

Total non-curr'ent

7,000

7,000

{r,000

8.000

46,000
4ó,000

3,050
.s,92.5

5,575
.5,200

4,800
t7,500
4,100

3,050
t? o?5

12,575

13,200

12,800

63,-500

50,700

$ì

$ 122,000

$ 122,000

46,750 168,7-50
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic f'inancial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

(12) Long-Term Debt, contittued

Loan Payabl.e

1977 U,S. EDA Loøn - Novato Water segntent

Irr August 1977,the Distl'ict secured a loan with the U.S. Econornic l)evelopÍnent Administration (EDA)
to assist in the funding emergency Novato Water system projects in res¡rottse to a severe drought.

The loan is scheduled to mature in 2018. Principal and interest are payable antrually on July 1'r at a rate of
5.000Vo. Future annual detrt service requirettrents on the Ioan ale as follows:

n'iscal Year Princioal Interest Total

2009

2010
201'.|

2012
2013

2014-2018

Total

Less cun'cnt portion

Tot¿rl non-curlenl

$ 130,tì81ì

$ l30,utÌ8

34,tì23 I 65,71 ',l

$
1 t,880
12,474

13,091

13,752

79,68.5

6"544
5,950

5,32'l
4,672

12,330

18.424

18,424

t8,424
18.424

92,0 r5

1977 U.S. EDA Loan-West Marìn segment

In August 1977,the Distl'ict securecl a loan with the U.S. Econornic Developrnent Administration (EDA)
to assist in the funding emergency West M¿u:in system projects, including telnpol'ary diversions from Bear

Valley Creek and Lagunitas Creek, in response to a severe dlought.

The loan is scheduled to matule in 201 B. Principal and interest are payable annually on .Iuly I '{ at a rate of
5.0007o. Future annual debt service requirements on the loan ale as follows:

Fiscal Year Princinal I¡rterest Total

2009
20r0
201 I

2012
20r3

2014-2018

$

1,764

I,853
1,945

2,Q42

l1 113

$ 18,777

939

8-51

758

661

1,666

2,703
2,704
2,703
2,103

t2,839

Total

Less ct¡n'enl ¡rortion

'ftital non-cuu'ent

4,875 23,652

$ 18,717
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Finalrcial Staternents

For the Years Bnded June 30,2008 and 2007

(12) Long-Term Debt, continued

Loa n F ay abl.e, c o rttin.u. e d

2003 Hamilton Boundøry Liability

On.Tanuary 16,2003, an agreernent was executed with the Marin Municipal Water Distlict to rcorganize
the water service boundary at Hamilton Air Force Base which lies in the south east section of the City of
Novato. The Ðistrict received capital assets including the I.0 rnillion gallon Air base Tank and 15,157 ft.
of transmission lines. 'Ihe agreement called for an initial payment on March 29, 2003 of $905,1 93 and six
additional payments of $200,000 due each July 1'1 from 2003 through 2008. For internal accourrting
purposes an interest late of 5.0ûlo was imputed on the liability and the liability has been cliscounted
accordingly. The balance of the liabilit.y was paicl-off in 2008 prior to its July 1, 2008 final payment date.

2005 DWR Loan - Novato Water scgntent

I- a/\/ì< ¡L^ r\l..¿-l^r .,.-r-,-.,1 :.-.^ ,,.. ,,.:¿L ¿r- . 
^..1:¡:^----:^ 

n^- ---¿-^^^-^¿ ^f, ll¡--- -,- n - .---,-, -rll ¿\r\r-,' LllL l-rl¡lllLt çlllClçU lttlU.rtl dÈllçClltçltl Wltll Lltg LdltlUllllif f-,rglj¿tlllllglll. Ul VVAICI I\giìUUILCS
(DWR) lbr a loan in an amounl not-to-exceed $16,528,850 with an intelest rate of 2.397a per antrum. As
of June 30, 2008, the District has borrowed $15,696,19-5 for the reconsttuction of the Stalforcl \ilater
Treatrnent Plant. Principal paymeuts will begin approxirnately one year aftel the com¡rletion of the
projeet, which is seheduled to be completed in fiscarl year 2009. Interest payments on the loan are due
each year onJanuary l" and July 2"'i. The loan will be repaid selni-annually over a 2O-year period basecl

on the estimated repayment schedule below:

Fist'.al Year Principal lnterest Total

200!'r

201 0

2011

2012
2013

2014-2018
2019-2023
2024-2028

2029

Tofal

Unexpended plincipal on loan

'l'otal ¡rroncipal ouf stalìding

Lc:ss cun'ent porlion

Total non-cnrrerrl

ló.528,850

(832,6.5s)

r 5,696,I 9.5

fì 1.5,69ó,t 9-5

4.360,638 20,889,4tì8

$

6-53,315

669,O23

6tì5, t 08

70r,580
3,769,178
4,244,601

4,779,998
1,02(:t,041

3er ,1.59

375,451

3s9,361

342,894
1,453,194

911,711

442,374
r8,42tì

1,044.474

1,044.474

1,044,475

1,044.474
5 2)) 7'7)

\ ))2 77)
5 )1) 1'7)

1,044,475

$

-1 -1



North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 300 2008 and 2007

(12) Long-Term Debt, continued

Loan Payøblc, contittued

2005 SWRCB Loøn - Novøto Recycled Water segment

In 2005, the District entered into an agreernent with the Califolnia State Water Resources Control Board
(SWRCB) for a loan in an arnount of $4,302,-560 with an interest rate of 2.47o per annulll for the

construction of a recycled water facility.

The loan is scheduled to matLue in 2O27 . Principal and interest are payable annually on June l9(r' at a rate

of 2.4o/c,. F-uture annual debt service requitements on the loan are as follows:

Fiscal Year Princinal hlterest Total

2009
2010
20r r

2012
2013

2014-20t8
2019-2023
2024-2027

114"199

r 78,380
182,662

187,04-5

191 ,534
I,028,870
I ,158,40s
1,030,882

99, I 68

94.987

90,7().5

86,322

81.833

337,96*5

208.430

ó2,-586

273,367

273,367

273,367

213,367

273,361

I,366,835
l,366,835
I,093,468

$ì

Tottl

Less cul'rc¡nt por'l,iorl

Total non-cu¡:rent

(13) Net Investment in Capital Assets

Net invcstmenl in capital assets:

$ 4,131,977

(174,199)

$ì 3,957,778

r.06r,99ó 193,9735,

2008

$ 8,613,432

76.rì00,059
(22,923)

(114,199\
(3 r 2,878)

( 19,803,628)

$ 65,099,863

12,87 t,125
66,50s,91 .5

(20,7tìo

(342,807)
(r9,723,163)

2007

The [rtlance at Jurlù 30, consisls ol'lhe folkrwing:

Ca¡lital assetrì. not being dcpreciiled
Depreciablc cirpital assets

Bonds payable - cutrelì{ portion

Loans payable * current yrol'tion

Boncls payable - norì-current portion

Loans payable - non-clnr:enl. portion

Net ínvcstmetìt in capitâl arìscts

Rcstricted lor ijebt service

Restlictecl for capital projccts

Total rcstrictcd ngt assets

2007

47,641

4,946,197

5L),290,284

(14) Restricted Net Assets

The balance ¿rt June 30, consists ol'the lbllowing:

2008

$ 51,042
4,692,1s2

34
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Finallcial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

(15) Unrestricted Net Assets

Ne{ tssgts arc designated as lirllows:

2008 2007

2.45 r,3.58

1 ,731,021
666,-502

394,400

355,059

90,-538

4,787,85-s 4,0s8,680

fù __lllzgJll I1,171),233

(16) Deferred Compensation Savings Plan

For the benefit of its enrployees, thc District p:ìrlicipiìtes in ir 4-57 L)eferred Cornpensation Progronr
(Proglarn). Tlre pulpose of this Program is lo provide cJeferred compensation for public ernployees that
elect to participate in the Progranl. Gener¿ìlly, eligible ernployees may def'er receipt of a portion of their
salary unlil tenninatiou, rctirement, death or unforcseeatrle emelgency. Until the finds are paid or
otherwise made available to tlie employee, the employee is not obligated to report the defened salary fbr
income tax purposes.

F'edelal law tequites deferred cornpensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the
participants. Accordingly, tire District is in compliance with this iegislation. Therefore. these assets are
not the legal property of the Districl, and are nol subject to claims of the District's general creclitors.
Market value of the plan assets held in lr'r¡st at June 30, 2008 ind 2O0-l was $2,540,227 and $2,583,235,
respeclively.

The Districl has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Act:rtlottirtg, und Fi.ncutcial. Re¡tortin.g for Intemal
ILevenue Cc¡dc Section 457 De,ferred Contpensutiun Plun.s, Since the District has little administrative
ilrvolvement and does not ¡rel'fornr the investing finction fbr this plan, the assets and related liabilities are
not shown on the statement of net assets.

(17) Defïned Benefit Pension Plan

Flan Description

The DistLict colrtfibutes to the Califomia Public Employees Retirement System (CaIPERS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. CaIPERS provides retirement and disability benefits,
anltual cost-of--living adjustments, and death benefits to plan menrbers and beneficiaries. CaIPERS acts as

a cornmon investlnent and administrative agent for participating public agencies within the Stâte ol'
California. Benefit provisions and all other lequirements are established by state statute and the Authority.
Copies of CaIPERS annual financial report may be obtained fornr their executive Office: 400 P Strcet,
Sacranrento, CA, 9-58 I 4.

Funding Policy

The contribution rate for plan rnembers in the CaIPERS 2.57c at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan is B7o of
their amual covered salary. The District makes these contributions required of District employees on their
behalf and fbr their account. Also, the Distlict is required to contribute the actualially determined
retnaining amounts rìecessaly to fìrnd the benefìts for its members. The required ernployer contributioll
rates are equal to the annual pension cost (APC) percentage of pay'oll for fiscal year 2008, 2007 and 2006
as noted below. The contrilrution requirements of the plan rnernbers are estalr]ished by State stittute, and
tlie employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by CaIPERS. For fìscal years 2008,
2007 and 2006, the District's annual conü'ibutions for the CaIPERS ¡rlan were equal to the Distl'ict's
required and actual contributlons 1or each f iscal yeal as f'ollows:

Posf entployrnent Lrcncrlì1 s

Fercility mainterìallco rescrve

Scll'-ilsured - workcrs' corn¡lensatiolr
(ìontingcncics

Llonscrvatron rrìcclìtlve râte

Recycled waler lacilil.y rcpalcerlenl
Undesignated

Toti¡l unlestliclcd ncl assets

$ 2,253.31 3

3,312,75'7

6-50,790

59 l ,349
'.\12,344
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the BasÍc Financial Statcments

Iror the Years Bnded June 300 2008 and 2007

(17) Defined BenefTt Pension Plano continued

Fiscal
Year

Annual
Pension

Cost (APC)

Percentage
of APC

Contributed

Net
Pension

APC
Percentage
of Payroll

711,37 t

80ó,896

859,221

(18) Other Post Employment Benefits

In addition to a pension plan, substantially all the District's employees may becotne eligible for cefiain
health care benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Distl'ict. In accordance with
entployee agreetnents and an agreement with CaIPERS, all employees and/or their surviving spouse who

retire from the District and receive CaIPERS retirement benel'its may become eligible for ceftain post

enrployment health care benefits.

Also, the Distlict contributes the cost of health cale insurance fbr retirees (age 55 to 65) and their spouse

under any group health care plm offerecl by CaIPERS. The District's contribution towald the chosen plan

is capped in the same lnannel'as all other District ernployees in the same class. Covelage terminates when

the retiree or spouse becomes eligible for Medicare coverage. The retiree must be at least 55 years old and

have a minimum of l2-years of service at the d¿rte of retirement. When the retiree or spouse becolnes

eligible for Medic¿u'e coverage, the Distlict will pay a monthly contribution toward tlre cost of health

insurance coverage for the remainder of tlte retiree and spouse's lives.

The District finalrces these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. In 2008 and 2007, the Distl'ict paid

$182,003 and $180,771, respectively, in post-ernployment health c¿rre benefits and had 33 eligible retiled
employees in 2008 and2007, respectively.

(19) Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks o1'Ioss related to torts, theft of, damage to and deshuction of
assets; erlors and onrìssions; injuries to enrployees; ard natural disasters. The Disttict purchases

commercial illsurance poìicies with a variety of coverage including an $10.0 lnillion excess general

liability policy with a $1.0 millioll self'-insured letention limit, a $35,550,000 property and equipntent

policy, a $1.0 million public official's policy and a $.500,000 ernployee dishonesty bond.

(20) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective

The Governmental Accounting Standards Bclard (GASB) has issued several pronouncements priol to June

30, 2008, that has effective dates that may inrpact future financial presentations.

Goverrunental Accountíng Standards Boørd Statement No, 45

In June 2004,the GASB issued Statemellt No. 4.5, At:courtting, antl Finanr:ial Re¡torting by Enqtkt..vers.for

Post-emplrryment Benelits Otlrcr Thun Pen.si.ons. This Statement establishes standards for the

measurement, recognition, aud display of OPEB exlrense/expenditures and related liabilities (assels), note

disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplernentary information (RSI) in the financial reporls of state

and local govemlnent employers. This staternent is not effective for this District until the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2009. This statetnent is expected to have a signifìcant impact on the presentation of the

District's financial statements in future years.

2005-2006
2006-2007

2007-2008

$ l00c/'
100Ò/r:

l00o/c

13.041%,

13.9860h

13.841a/r:

36



North Marin \{ater District
Notes to the Basic Fi¡ralrcial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007

(20) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective

Governntentø|. Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 48

Iri Septernber 2007, the GASB issued Statement No. 48, Sal.es and Pledges r¡f' ller:eivables and Futttre
Reventte,s un.d lntru-Entit.v T'rctnsfers of Assets utl¿l Future Reten.ueo'. This statement estabìishes criteria
llt:rl rvrlvertrtnenf t r¡lill nrê l^ rrrccr'frirr rr¡lreihel n¡'r.trrin trorrc,:¡finnc "h^',1'.1 hâ rañô'./.1-'{ ,,. .,,1-.. ^.. ,,...^... Þ., ¡¡.r .trrvutu trv tL.¡;(rtuLu (tr ¡(tt\ ù v¡ q¡

coÌlateralized borrowings. This statement also includes disclosure requirements for fiture revenues th¿rt
atc ¡rlctlgctJ ol sold. TILis statement is not effèctive for this District until tlìe tiscal year: ended June 30,
2009. This statetnent is not expected to have a significant impact on fhe presentation of the District's
fi nanci al st¿ìteÍnents.

Govcrnrnentøl Accoun.ting Standa.rds Board Sttttcnrcnt No. 49

In Novenrber 2007, the GASB issued Statement No. 49, Accowtting antl þ'inanr:ia.l Re¡torting .for
Pol.l.ution Rentetlia.tit¡n Obli¡1atiotts. This staternent provides guidance on how to calculate and report the
costs and obligations associated with pollution cleanup efforts. This st¿rtenrent is not effective fbl this
Distlict until the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This statement is not expected to have a signilicant
impact on the plesentation of the District's financial statenlents.

Governntental Accounting Standørds Baard Statement No. 50

In May 2008, the GASB issued Statement No. 50, Pension l)isck¡sures, cut, antendtnent oÍ' GASB
Stateruents No.25 anrl 27. This staten-ìertt more closely aligns the financial reponing requirenrents for
pensions with those for other post-enrployment benefìts (OFEB) and, in doing so, enhances infonnatiol:
disclosed in the notes to financial statements or presented as required supplementar¡r inforrnation (RSI) by
pension plans and by employers that provide pension benefìts. The reporting changes required by this
Staternent amend npplicable note disclosure and RSI r:equirements of GASB Statements No. 2-5 and 27 , to
conform with requirenrents of GASB Statements No. 43 and 45. This statement is not effective for this
District until the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. 'Ihis statement is not expected to have a sìgnifìcant
impact on the plesentation of'the District's financial statements.

Goventm.ental Accounti.ng Standards Board Statement No, 5l
In June 2008, the GASB issued Statement No.5l, Accoun.ti.ng untl Finant:i.ul Re¡tnrtingfor Intan¡4ible
.4,ç.ç¿¡/s. This slatement requires that all intangible âssets not specifically excluded try its scope provisions
be classified as capital assets. This statement is not effective for this District until the fisczrl year ended
June 30, 2010. This st¿ìtement is rnay have an impact on the presentation of the District's financial
statements.

Governntental Accoun.ting Standards Boørd Støtement No. 52

ln Novernber 2007, the GASB issued Statement No. -52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments
by Endowrnents. This statement establishes consistent standards for the repolting of land ¿rnd other real
estate held as investments by essentially similar entitìes. lt requires endowments to repott their land and
other real estate illvestments at fair value. This statement is not effective for the District until the fisc¿ll
year: ended.Tune 30, 2009. This staternent is nof expected to have a significant impact on the presentation
of the District's financial statements.

Governtnental Accounting Støndards Board Støtement No. 53

In .Iune 2008, the GASB issued Statement No. -53, Acr:ourttin.¡g und Finuru:ial Re¡tortin.¡¡ frtr Derit,atit,e
Instn,tnxen.ts. This st¿rfetnent addresses the recognition, measurelnent, and disclosure of information
regarding derivative instl'utnents entered into by state and local governlneltts. This statenrent is llot
effective for the Dis¡'ict until the fiscal year ended .lune 30, 2010. This staternenr is not expected to have a
signifìcant impact on the prcsentation of the District's financial statements.

-1 I



North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statemenls

For the Years Eneled June 30,2008 and 2007

(21) Commitments and Contingencies

Sonoma Couttty Water Agency Agreement

The District is party to an ¿ìgreement with the Sonoma County Water Agency (Agency) that provides,

alnong other matters, that the Distlict is obligated to pay for a prorated share of ceffain Agertcy's costs to
irnprove or expand the Agency's water utility plant. The agreetnent expit'es on June 30, 2040 and is
subject to renewal for 40-year terms. Under the agreernent, the District is obligated to pay promptly all
billings fi'orn the Agency and may not withhold payment ¡rending resolution of disputes, if any, which
might exist between the District and the Agency.

N ovato Sanitary District

The District has entered into a contract with the Novato Sanitaly Disttict which requires the District to
transfer ownelship of the recycled water treatnrent plant to the Novato Sanitaty District upon completion
and apploval from the State Water Resources Control Board. The Novato Sanitaly District will be

requircd to supply trcated water to the District at rates sulficient to rccover all operating expenses

incuned.

Construction. Contra cts

The District has a variety of agreements with developers and private parties relating to the installation,
improvement or modifìcation of transmission facilities and distribution systems within its service area.
'Ihe financing of such improvemel'ìts is provided plirnarily fi'orn advances f'ol' construction and the

districts capital replacernent reserve. The District has committed to approximately $2,312,963 of open

construction contracts as ofJune 30, 2008. These include:

Pro.iect Name

Total
Approved
Co¡rtract

Balance

Complete
t()

Palmer Drive l"ank

Outlet Iowol' sluce gate

2nd l'eed to Arnlno Hill tank

l'otal $ 3,819,244 2,312,963

$ 2,849,4t4
1,009,980

19,850

I,853,191

4.56,2s6

3,.5 r 6

Grant Awards

Grant funds received by the District ale subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could le¿rd to
requests for reimburselnellts to the grantol agencies for expenditures disallowed under tenns ol'the grant.

Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant,

Litigation

ln the ordinary course of operations, the Distlict is subject to claims and ìitigation frorn outside parties.

After co¡rsultation with legal ceunsel, the District believes the ultimate outcotne of suclt matters, if any,

will not rnatelially afïect its financial condition.
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North Marin Water District
Combining Statement of Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30,2008

,4s.s¿fs

Novato
Water

Novato
Recycled

West Marin
Water

Oceana l\{arin
Seu'el 'l'otal

Curenl rsscÍs:

Cash and cash cquivalcnfs
llestlicted - cash and cash equivalenls
Accruecl interest leceivâble
À¡..,rrrnt. r,',.,'iw ihl,' ,,,,rr,." .,^/ . ^,,,^- ..,.1^,,

Accounts reccivablc - govelnnlental agencies
Ar¡r¡n¡¡¡115 t'Ccìeiyitble - Othet'

Notc reccivablc - Illack Point Goì1'Links
Notes I'ocei\/able - enrployee com¡rutel loans
Mal:et'ials and sup¡rlies inventory
Prepaicl cxpenses and cleposits

Tot¿tl cul'rclìt iìssets

Non-cumcnl. assels:

lìvestrnenls
llcstlictcd - itìvcsl tnr'nts
lntenlal bal¿rnccs

Note rcceivablt: - lJlack l)oinr Golf Links
Notcs rcc:civablc * empkryce honsing krans
Capilal assets, not lreing de¡leciat.ed
l)epleciable oíìpitiìl asscts, nel

'l.otaI non-cul'enf assets

'l'otal assets

LiahìIilies antl Net Ass¿ts

Cur¡ cnt liabilitics:
Ascounts payable irnd acclued expcnscs
Accruccl rvagcs and rclated payables
Acolued claims ¡rayable
Customor aclvances and deposits
Acr:lr¡cd inlelest payable * krng-telnr dobt

Long-lelnr liatrililies - clue within orìc )/caL'
Con¡rensated abscnccs

Iìonds payatrle

Loans payable

Total currcnt liabilitics

Non-curlent liabilities:
L,ong-teÍm liabilities * duc'in rnole than onc yeâr.

Conlrensatcd absences

Other post-cmpkryrnent benelit.s payablc
13onds payable

Loans payable

Tot¿rl non-c-.urrcnt li abil ities

lotal liabilities

Net asscts:

Nct investnlcnt in capital asscts

lìcstlicted 1ìrl capital projccts ancl clcbt servicc
Unrestficted

Total nct ¡¡ssets

Total liabilities ¡¡nd nef assets

$ 5, | 23,833

9,51.390

144.586

590,866

ló1,280

tì, 164

634.37-5

30.040

90.538

54,81 2

7f1,744

5"1 .414

t:.t lJ

50,955

3,43(r

.5,29-1,1 I -5

1.0(r3,646

t44,5tì6
2,-s50.603

590.tÌ(r6

226,514
t'Ì4,332

1ì,164

634,37 5

33,476

t4,219
t74.332

() ()ìr q17 448,622 t34,764 2().ì.354 1(),7 t9,671

439.960
3,ótì3,3 t I

591 ,-506

879.200

7.493,383

61 ,646,223

3,0'14.6t2

95 I,826
3.7 l -1,8ó9

(-5e r ,506)

I I t,882
4,ó91,81 I

4,2 r .5" 187

56.::l4l

745, I 5ó

439.gfi)
3,683,31 B

3,074,612
8?9,200

Í1,613,432

76,i1ffi,0-59

93,490.581801,491tì0,733,590

$ 90,6(ú,527

7,740,307

n,I tì8.929 4,3,19.951 tì5 r t 04.210,258

$ t.-145,024

272,24'7

23,40,1

932,759

2,961

90,563

3,0639Xt

174,199

270,786

271,688
90, I 88

15,827,013 .1,9.57,77tr

93,626 3.565

6.062
270

1,042

|,842,2t5
298,147

21,557

952,751
(r,731

19,8.38

8fì4

1t3,950

3.7'7(\

21 0rì
90..5ó3
)) o)1

t74,199

6ó,36-s r0.939 3,412,086

3 t 2,878

t8,717

27 r .688
90. I 88

:l 12.878

r 9,80.r,628

l6¿!8,94?

19,252,945

. 3,951,778

4,228,564

33 r,655 20,4'78,?82

39f:t,020 r0,939 23,890,468

.59,3 I2.-s:13

4.634,708
7,466,341

533,7 r 8 4,452.1t5
51,042

(-s5 t ,22ó)"l

801 ,497
57,444

134,91 1

993.912

I .004,8.s 1

65.099,863

4,743.t94
10,476,733

fl0,:3 t 9.790

104.210,258

't1,413,582

$

39

I,I tì8,929

3,9.51,931

L

r-
{

Ë



North Marin Water District
Combining Statement of Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30,2007

Assels

Cun'ùnt âssets:

Cash and cash cquivalenl.s

lìestr.icted - cash and caslì cìquivírlents

Accrucd interesf receivable

Accounts ¡eceivablc - watcìr and seu,el sales

Accounls reccivablc - governtnental agcttcies

Accounts leceivable - other'

Notc leceivable - lllack Point Coll'Links
Notc,s l'eccivable - ent¡rloyee computer loans

Matclials arr<l supplics iuvcntot'y
ll c¡raitl cx¡rcrtscs irnd de¡rosils

T0tiìl cuncnl Írsse l\

Non-cument assets:

lnvcst¡nents
lì.cstricted - investments

Inlelnal tralanccs

Notc lcccivable * Black Poìnt Golf Links
Notes l'ccoi\'âblc - enplo¡,ec housiug loans

Capital assels. not bcing delrrcciated

Depleciable capital assels, nel

Total non-culfelrl assgts

1'otal assr:ls

I.iahilities ønd Net Asscts

Cur¡'ent liabilities:
Accou¡rts ¡rayablc and acctued ox¡tenscs

Accrued wages and rclated ¡rayables
Accrued clairns payable

Custonrel advanoes and de¡rosits

Accn¡cd intelest ¡rayable - long-tcrûr dcbt
Loug-telnr liabilities - clue within one ycâr:

Corrr¡rensatcd absences

Ììonds payablc

Loitns Pa¡rnb[e

Total cul'cnt liabilities

Non-current. liabilities:
Long-telm liabilirics - duc in l'ìlore tharì one year:

Comperrsated absenccs

Other post-crn¡rloyrnonl benefi ts ltayable
Iìonds payablc
Loans ¡rayable

Total nur-ct¡rrent liabilities

Tot¡rl liabilities

Net asscts:

Nct invcst¡nent in capital asset.s

lìestricted f'or capifal projects and debt sel'vicc

Unrestricted

Total net assets

'l'otal liabilities and net assets

$ 2,820,089

|,226,542
t43,-573

2,287.610

59.475
164.2(r5

4,,s09

655,1 I I

44,02't

630,47iì

7,00tì
170,206

52,060

tì2,950

3,(r3,5

I,6s0

I 37,,s 14

45,092

r r,890

*,t

3,347

Novato
Water

Novato
Ilccycled

Wesf Marin
Water

Oce¡¡na Marilr
Sewcr Tofal

2.957,603

1,323,6e4

t43,573
2,382.450

(rf:ì9,9-53

1"Ì5,'140

170,206

4,509

655,1 I I

49.021

1,293,653
3,(r7-5,163

3.248,944
701,200

t2,87 t,125
(r(r,505,9 1.5

7,405,201 807,692 140,295 198,67.s f1.55 t,863

4.293.653
3,6',7 5,t63

673.345 (440,300)(23:r,04.5)

3,248,944

4,545,634
701,20{)

7,499,121

ó2,1 03,1 84

't8,946,266 7,5ó r ,s33

194.120
3,ó35,558

3,989,378

3l ,650
767,1'73

798.823 91,296,m0

$ 86,3.51,4ó7 8,369 ta5 4,129.673 e97,498 99,847.863

I ,fì 12,962

284,360

ll1,9fi)
r,m3,281

4 5,230

5; 1,796,8.5.5

261,707

106,8 r0
t,544,1t94

20

109,838

6,500

40,'797

5.041

l1 ,"t29
4,030

44.0r 5

4,4t3

20,786

4,5(ró

4,924
I,120

14,372

109,83rJ

20,786

3,820,124

329.5 l5

4't,297 96.014 24,982 3.988,417

15,43 ft. t40 4,264,545
342,80't

20,478

329.51 s

342,Íl(')"1

19,723,163

20,39s,485ts 7ó7,655 4.264,545 363,285

19,587,179 4.31r,842 459,299 24,982 24,383.902

54. I 64,765
4.90r,70-s

7,697,218

28 I,089

3,176,291

4,045,607

4"1,647

(422,880)

198.823
45,092

128,601

59,290.284

4,994.444
11.119.233

(r6,763,688 4,057,383 3.670,374 972.516 75,463,961

$ 86.3s |.46't
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North Marin Water District
Cornbining Statement of Revenues, Bxpenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the Year.Bnded .lune -î0,2008

Novato
Water'

Novato
Rccycled

'West Marin
Water

403, I 86

70,200

Occan¿r Marin
Scrvcr Total

Operatiug revenues:

Watet consurn¡rti0n sâles

Monf hly metc:r'scrvice chal'ge

Sewel scrvicc chargcs
witk'I ù()ilsti\ al¡oit I)r'()tcct\
Olhel clralges and sorvices

TotÍìl 0perating revenue$

Operating expensr:s:

Sourcc d'sup¡rly
Punrpin¡t

Watcr l'acilities opcr¿tlions
'Wâ1cl' trcâfn'renl

Transurission and rlistt ibution
Scv,,cge collection and fl ertnlent
CusIonrer- ser-vice

Ceneral antl adnrinistrativc
lnr¡rroverneut plojccls
Watel' consel\,¿rtion plojecls

'Iotal o¡rcrating expÈnscs

Opelating loss bclìll'e ovelhead absorpf ion
Ovcrhc¿rd ahsorltion

Opcrating loss bcfore dc¡rlcoia(ion
l)cplccial.ion

Operating loss

Non-o¡rcIotin g rcvcnucs(()xPonses) :

Proporty lax rovenue

lnt,estnrcnl ealnings
l{cntal revenue

Constluction larvsuit scltlcment
Intcl'cst expense -. long-telrn dt:bt

Sononra County Watel Agcnc¡, ¿ìglecment
Loss on sale/disposition o1'capital asse(s. ncl

Olhor non-o¡rcr'íìting revonucs. not

Total non-operating revcllues. uct

Nef loss bet'ore capital contributions

Ca¡rital contlibutions:
Dcvclopers and othcl's

Conrlec:tion l'ecs

Capital c<¡ntribulions

Change in net assets

Net asscts. bcginniug ol'yoar

Prior ¡reliod ad.f ustmcnt

Nol- asscts. cncl of yeal'

$ 9,030,3r 2

t,354,428

394,398

203,1'15

173,992

198

146.642

9,m7,490
t,424,628

r16.612
394,398

205.9992.626

r 0.982,313 l't4 190 476,012 146,642 r;7't9,151

-1,77 r,.108

3 t9,065
41ì5,947

I,-5:15,067

2.264.38'7

2.901

il,10ó
51,115
20,?40
7ó,58tJ

109,r tì6

442,0'76

l.tì06.724
I , I 28,876

3.59,74 B

(l+ì+ | (ì

3,180
23.41)1

48,735

3,182,414
319,341

,s(Xr,287

l,ó98,781
2,385;742

84.41 B

466,30r
I,900,169
1,4'15.193

. 35-9.748.

13,038,394

B',t,126

1 2,1 69

12,t25
5'7,5',12

2l ,045
5?,829

240,010

t2.t 13.t98 I7l.tJ93

2,297

593.479 I 59.824

(r.r30,885)
489,915

(t17.467)

7,297

( r 3,r 82)

2,1f19

(t,259,23"Ì)

499,101

(640,970)
( I ,.546.08 1)

I 1()?

(94,209)
(r r0,170)
(94,215)

/ I lì (l{12\

(27, r 68)

(759,rì36)
(t.761,673)

(2,187,0s r ) (9r,9r2) (204.3lJ-5) (3ti
, r 6l ) (2,-s2I ,s09)

1,146

590.41-5

4.5.360

(377,-s38)

(l r4,682)
(4s,93s)

35,2'75

98,7-stJ

( 1 03,864)

62,797

2.163
3.3'r3

(38.082)

(t'7,22',7)

1,044

46,1 86
-Ì .571

5(X)

(1,1 85)

936

1 t0,129
699.r 07

49.233

(s r 9,484)
(114,ótl2)

(64,347\

37,255

134,04 r (5.106) 14.268 s4.008 197,211

( 2,( ).53 ,0r o) (97,0rrì) (190,r r7) 15,847 (2,324,21)8)

5.146.ó16

1,422,606
387,674
84,000

11,995

9,000
s,546,285
r,-51.5,m6

6,569,222 471,6'74 20,995 7,061,89 r

4,516.212

66.763,688

l 33,682

(97,0r B)

4.057,383

28 r ,5.57

3,(t'10,3'74

36,842

972,516

(15.446)

1,111 ,51)3

't5.463.9(;t

I I8,236

$ 7 t.413,5rì2 3,9ril.365 3,95 r ,931 993.912 80,3 r 9,790
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North Marin Water District
Cornbining Statenrcnt of Revenues, Bxpenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Ended June 30' 2007

Novato
W¿rter

Novato
Recycled

West Marin
Water

Oceana Mari¡r
Server Total

9,693, r 04

I,4t2,428
145,605

406.8 l3
190,087

Opcrating Lcvenues:

Wâtel cronsurnptiort sales

Monthly meter scrvicc chat'ge

Sewer se t'r,icc chargcs

W¿r(r'r' ('()rtscrvÍìtitrn pr oicctr
Othcr chnlgcs and services

Totíìl opelatûlg revenues

Operrting expenses:

Sourcc of supply
Pumping
Water' lici lities <rporations

Watcr t.rcatrnent

Transnrission and distribution
Selvage collection and troatmc.nt

Custorttel' scrvice
Cenernl and adnrinistrative
lm¡l'ovenrcul plolects

Water corrselvation ¡rrojects

Total o¡rera(ing exper)ses

()¡relating loss [re lille ovellleacl ahsorptitln
( )vr'r'he atl ahsor¡rtion

Opcrating krss belbre dc¡l cciation

De1:r'cciatiolr

O¡rerating loss

Non<rperatin g revcnues(oxpcnses) :

Propcrty tax rcvenue
lnvcstnrent ealnings
lìcntâl revenue
Constluc:tion lawsuit settÌcment

Intcrest cxpense - long-ter'nt dcbt

Sr¡n<llna County Watel Agcncy agreenlent

Loss on salc/disposition oi'capital assets. ngl

Olhol non-opolatiug rcvenucs, nct

Total non-operating rc\/r:lìucs, net

Nct loss before capital contributions

Ca¡rital contrihulions:
Devclopers and othcrs
Connectirrn feos

Cn¡rital contributions

Change in net assets

Net assets. beginning ol ycar

Prior' peliod ad.iustmcnl

Net asscts, end of year

$ 9,246,910
1,3.54,-s46

7,008 439, I 86

.57,882

945
3,072

405,868
l86,tì75

145,605

140

ll, t 94,1 99 7,008 ,s0l,085 t4s,745 I l,tì48,037

4,502,280
v07,616
498,630

|,222,e56
2,1 38,80.1

I,442
6,500

449.492
I,756,3.38

1,326,784
283,242

66,253

12.486,14t '/4,195

(67, I 87)u,29t,e42)
,s86,417

(70s,525)
(1.377,613)

67,187)

(2,083, l 38) (67, r lì7)

I r,085
74, l 09

18,1)24

73,627

8.3.545

2l,503
57, r33
98,1 80

78,328

3,087

22,196
42,260

4,5 13.365

381,725

51 8,996

r ,303,083
2,222.348

78,328

474,082
l,tì.15,667

1 ,533,471
283,242

438. t06 145.81 l t3, t44.313

62,1)'19

1,193

(r26)
414

(1,296,276)

.58tì,324

64,4'12
(8-5,3 r 7)

(20.84.5)

288 (70't,e52)

0,490,077).147\

(26,8s9) (2, t98,029)

tì3

717,326
44,210

621 ,395
(292,071))

(r 65,340)
95,479

51 ,215
1,252
3.391

8,214
t4.7 t5

9'.7,9t9

825.799
48, l ól

62't,395
(41 r,s43)

(1 57,126)

r 48,t 34

102,024

(8 r,rì24) (37,640)

40,561

5,19't
s00

37,940

1,027,r34 20,200 47 201 84, I 98 1,118,739

( I,0.56,004) (46,9n7) 26,362. 5'7,339 ( 1 ,0r9,290)

4.464,659
354.421

3.(r12.(r40 t22,645
38.800

r 0.920
34,94(¡

8,210,864
428.t67

4,rJr 9,080 3,612,ó40 l6l .445 45,866 8,639,031

3,^163,076

66.47 1.1tì4

(3,470,512)

3,565,653

491,730

1 87,n07

3.4fi2.567

103,20.5

869,31 r

7,619,141

11,314,'.t92

(1,470,5',72)

$ 66,763,688 4,057,3tì3 3 9"72.516 75,463,9(¡l
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Charles Z. Fedak, CPA, MBA

Paul J. Kaymark, CPA

Independent Auditoros Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Aud.ítìng Standørds

Board of Directors
North Marin Water District
Novato, California

We have audited the basic financial staternents of the North Marin Water District (District) as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated September 11, 2008. We

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the sta¡rdards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Awliting Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internøl Control Over Fínancial Reportíng

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on

the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

District's intemal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the

effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect

misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the District's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, oÍ
report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there

is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the District's financial statements that is tnore

than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the District's internal control. A material

weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of sigrrificant deficiencies, that results in more than a

remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or
detected by the District's internal control. Our consideration of internal control over financial repofting
was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily

identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be

material weaknesses, as defined above.

Complíance and Other Møtters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,

contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the

determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those

provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under

G ov ernment Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors zurd managetnent and

is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

CharlesZ. Fedak & Company
Certif ied Public Accou ntants

An Accountancy Corporation

Ck*w.
A, A*.-h^'^

6081 Orange Avenue
Cypress, California 90630
(714) 527-1818
(562) 598-6565
FAX (714) 527-9154
EMAI L czfco@czfcpa.com

¿frttSeptember 11,2008
Cypress, California
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